
CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
Marty Blum 
Mayor 
Dale Francisco 
Mayor Pro Tempore 

 
James L. Armstrong 

City Administrator 
 

Das Williams 
Ordinance Committee Chair 

Stephen P. Wiley 
City Attorney 

Roger L. Horton 
Finance Committee Chair 

 

Iya G. Falcone  
Grant House 
Helene Schneider 

City Hall 
735 Anacapa Street 

http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov
 

NOVEMBER 10, 2009 
AGENDA 

 
ORDER OF BUSINESS:  Regular meetings of the Finance Committee and the Ordinance Committee begin at 12:30 p.m.  
The regular City Council meeting begins at 2:00 p.m. in the Council Chamber at City Hall.   
 
REPORTS:  Copies of the reports relating to agenda items are available for review in the City Clerk's Office, at the Central 
Library, and http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov.  In accordance with state law requirements, this agenda generally contains 
only a brief general description of each item of business to be transacted or discussed at the meeting.  Should you wish 
more detailed information regarding any particular agenda item, you are encouraged to obtain a copy of the Council 
Agenda Report (a "CAR") for that item from either the Clerk's Office, the Reference Desk at the City's Main Library, or 
online at the City's website (http://www.SantaBarbaraCA.gov).  Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to 
the City Council after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection in the City Clerk’s Office located 
at City Hall, 735 Anacapa Street, Santa Barbara, CA 93101, during normal business hours. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:  At the beginning of the 2:00 p.m. session of each regular City Council meeting, and at the 
beginning of each special City Council meeting, any member of the public may address the City Council concerning any 
item not on the Council's agenda.  Any person wishing to make such address should first complete and deliver a “Request 
to Speak” form prior to the time that public comment is taken up by the City Council.  Should City Council business 
continue into the evening session of a regular City Council meeting at 6:00 p.m., the City Council will allow any member of 
the public who did not address them during the 2:00 p.m. session to do so.  The total amount of time for public comments 
will be 15 minutes, and no individual speaker may speak for more than 1 minute.  The City Council, upon majority vote, 
may decline to hear a speaker on the grounds that the subject matter is beyond their jurisdiction. 
 
REQUEST TO SPEAK:  A member of the public may address the Finance or Ordinance Committee or City Council 
regarding any scheduled agenda item.  Any person wishing to make such address should first complete and deliver a 
“Request to Speak” form prior to the time that the item is taken up by the Finance or Ordinance Committee or City 
Council. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR:  The Consent Calendar is comprised of items that will not usually require discussion by the City 
Council.  A Consent Calendar item is open for discussion by the City Council upon request of a Councilmember, City staff, 
or member of the public.  Items on the Consent Calendar may be approved by a single motion.  Should you wish to 
comment on an item listed on the Consent Agenda, after turning in your “Request to Speak” form, you should come 
forward to speak at the time the Council considers the Consent Calendar. 
 
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special 
assistance to gain access to, comment at, or participate in this meeting, please contact the City Administrator's Office at 
564-5305 or inquire at the City Clerk's Office on the day of the meeting.  If possible, notification at least 48 hours prior to 
the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable arrangements in most cases. 
 
TELEVISION COVERAGE:  Each regular City Council meeting is broadcast live in English and Spanish on City TV 
Channel 18 and rebroadcast in English on Wednesdays and Thursdays at 7:00 p.m. and Saturdays at 9:00 a.m., and in 
Spanish on Sundays at 4:00 p.m.  Each televised Council meeting is closed captioned for the hearing impaired.  Check 
the City TV program guide at www.citytv18.com for rebroadcasts of Finance and Ordinance Committee meetings, and for 
any changes to the replay schedule. 

http://www.ci.santa-barbara.ca.us/
http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/


 
ORDER OF BUSINESS 

 
 12:30 p.m. - Finance Committee Meeting, David Gebhard Public Meeting 

Room, 630 Garden Street 
 2:00 p.m. - City Council Meeting Begins 
 4:00 p.m. - Interviews for City Advisory Groups (Estimated Time) 
 5:00 p.m. - Recess 
 6:00 p.m. - City Council Meeting Reconvenes 
 
 
ORDINANCE COMMITTEE AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETINGS 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING - 12:30 P.M. IN THE DAVID GEBHARD PUBLIC 
MEETING ROOM, 630 GARDEN STREET (120.03) 

Subject:  Fiscal Year 2010 Balancing And Adjustments 

Recommendation:  That the Finance Committee recommend that Council: 
A. Approve the adjustments to budgeted revenues and expenditures for Fiscal 

Year 2010 as detailed in the Summary of Recommended Budget Adjustments to 
address the projected revenue shortfall in the General Fund; and 

B. Adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of Santa 
Barbara Amending Resolution No. 09-043, Establishing Certain City Fees, 
Including Water and Wastewater Rates, to Authorize Adjustments to Parks and 
Recreation Fees and Adjust the Fee for Reserving Library Materials. 
 (See Council Agenda Item No. 15) 

11/10/2009 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 1 



REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING – 2:00 P.M. 
 

AFTERNOON SESSION 
 
AFTERNOON SESSION 

CALL TO ORDER 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

ROLL CALL 
 

CEREMONIAL ITEMS 

1. Subject: Employee Recognition - Service Award Pins (410.01) 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the City Administrator to express the 
City's appreciation to employees who are eligible to receive service award pins 
for their years of service through November 30, 2009. 
 

2. Subject:  Proclamation Declaring November 2009 As End Domestic 
Violence Month (120.04) 
 

CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

3. Subject:  Minutes 

Recommendation:  That Council waive the reading and approve the minutes of 
the adjourned regular meeting of October 5, 2009, and the regular meetings of 
October 6, 2009, and October 20, 2009. 
 

11/10/2009 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 2 



CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 

4. Subject:  TEFRA Hearing For Mental Health Association's Purchase Of 
Facilities At 617 Garden Street (240.03) 

Recommendation:  That Council hold a public hearing and adopt, by reading of 
title only, A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving 
the Issuance of Bonds by the California Municipal Finance Authority in an 
Amount not to Exceed $2,000,000 for the Purpose of Financing the Acquisition of 
Facilities for the Mental Health Association in Santa Barbara County, and Certain 
Other Matters Relating Thereto. 
  

5. Subject:  Approval Of Emergency Purchase Order And Approval Of Sole 
Source Vendor For Repairs To Equipment At El Estero Wastewater 
Treatment Plan (540.13) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Retroactively approve emergency Purchase Order No. 382921 in the 

amount of $64,148 to JWC Environmental for parts and labor needed to 
repair existing rag and trash removal equipment at the El Estero 
Wastewater Treatment Plant (El Estero); and 

B. Approve JWC Environmental as the sole source vendor for future parts 
and repair of Wastewater influent screening equipment. 

 

6. Subject:  Contract For Design Services For The Zone 4 Pavement 
Maintenance Project And Acceptance Of Grant Funds (530.04) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Approve the selection of Flowers and Associates (Flowers) to provide 

professional engineering design and construction management services 
for the annual Pavement Maintenance Project scheduled for Fiscal Years 
2010 through 2012; 

B. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a contract with Flowers in 
the amount of $59,280 for design services for the Zone 4 Pavement 
Maintenance Project (Project), and approve expenditures of up to $5,928 
for extra services of Flowers that may result from necessary changes in 
the scope of work; and 

C. Accept Local Surface Transportation Program (LSTP) Grant funding in the 
amount of $347,000, and increase appropriations and estimated revenues 
by $347,000 in the Fiscal Year 2010 Streets Capital Fund for the Project. 

 

11/10/2009 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 3 



CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 

7. Subject:  Approval Of Purchase Order For Dewatering Equipment At The 
William B. Cater Treatment Plant (540.10) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Authorize the purchase of a dewatering belt press from Aspen Rentals in 

the amount of $376,000 for use at the William B. Cater Water Treatment 
Plant (Cater) pursuant to section 4.52.070 (L) of the Santa Barbara 
Municipal Code whereby the City Council finds it in the best interest of the 
City to forego normal bidding processes; 

B. Approve an increase to the existing Purchase Order in the amount of 
$18,000 to allow for one additional month of the rental expenditure with 
Gold Coast Stabilization for a dewatering belt press; and  

C. Approve an increase to the existing Purchase Order in the amount of 
$68,250 to allow the continuation of the rental expenditure for the Rain For 
Rent mixing tank for an additional 30 months. 

 

8. Subject:  Contract For Annual Wastewater Flow Monitoring (540.13) 

Recommendation:  That Council award and authorize the Public Works Director 
to execute a contract with V&A Engineering (V&A) for $212,000 for a Wastewater 
Flow Monitoring Project and for expenditures up to $21,200 to cover any cost 
increases that may result from extra services. 
 

9. Subject:  Approval Of Map And Execution Of Agreements For 412 And 
414 Anacapa Street (640.08) 

Recommendation:  That Council approve and authorize the City Administrator to 
execute and record Parcel Map Number 20,785 for a subdivision at 412 and 
414 Anacapa Street (finding the Parcel Map in conformance with the State 
Subdivision Map Act, the City's Subdivision Ordinance, and the Tentative 
Subdivision Map), and other standard agreements relating to the approved 
subdivision. 
 

10. Subject:  Approval Of Map And Execution Of Agreements For 1829 State 
Street And 11 West Pedregosa Street (640.08) 

Recommendation:  That Council approve and authorize the City Administrator to 
execute and record Final Map Number 20,769 for a subdivision at 1829 State 
Street and 11 West Pedregosa Street (finding the Final Map in conformance with 
the State Subdivision Map Act, the City's Subdivision Ordinance, and the 
Tentative Subdivision Map), and other standard agreements relating to the 
approved subdivision, and authorize the City Engineer to record a removal 
document for the Land Development Agreement when the public improvements 
are complete. 

11/10/2009 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 4 



CONSENT CALENDAR (CONT’D) 

11. Subject:  Approval Of Map And Execution Of Agreements For 618 San 
Pascual Street (640.08) 

Recommendation:  That Council approve and authorize the City Administrator to 
execute and record Parcel Map Number 20,782 for a subdivision at 618 San 
Pascual Street (finding the Parcel Map in conformance with the State Subdivision 
Map Act, the City's Subdivision Ordinance, and the Tentative Subdivision Map), 
and other standard agreements relating to the approved subdivision. 
 

12. Subject:  Set A Date For Public Hearing Regarding Appeal Of Single Family 
Design Board Approval For 803 Rametto Lane (640.07) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Set the date of December 15, 2009, at 2:00 p.m. for hearing the appeal 

filed by Raye Haskell of the Single Family Design Board final approval of 
an application for property owned by Jane Barrett and located at 
803 Rametto Lane, Assessor's Parcel No. 015-120-010, A-2 One-Family 
Residence Zone, General Plan Designation:  Residential, Two Units per 
Acre.  The project consists of construction of additions to the first floor and 
a new second story to an existing 1,837 square-foot, one-story single-
family residence located in the Hillside Design District; the proposed total 
of 3,832 square feet is 77% of the maximum floor-to-lot area ratio 
guideline; and 

B. Set the date of December 14, 2009, at 1:30 p.m. for a site visit to the 
property located at 803 Rametto Lane. 

 

NOTICES 

13. The City Clerk has on Thursday, November 5, 2009, posted this agenda in the 
Office of the City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside 
balcony of City Hall, and on the Internet. 

14. A City Council site visit is scheduled for Monday, November 16, 2009, at 
1:30 p.m. to the property located at 226 and 232 Eucalyptus Hill Drive, which is 
the subject of an appeal hearing set for November 17, 2009, at 2:00 p.m. 

 
This concludes the Consent Calendar. 
 

REPORT FROM THE FINANCE COMMITTEE 

11/10/2009 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 5 



CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

15. Subject:  Fiscal Year 2010 Balancing And Adjustments (230.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Approve the adjustments to budgeted revenues and expenditures for 

Fiscal Year 2010 as detailed in the Summary of Recommended Budget 
Adjustments to address the projected revenue shortfall in the General 
Fund; and 

B. Adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of 
Santa Barbara Amending Resolution No. 09-043, Establishing Certain City 
Fees Including Water and Wastewater Rates, to Authorize Adjustments to 
Parks and Recreation Fees and Adjust the Fee for Reserving Library 
Materials. 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

16. Subject:  Appeal Of Planning Commission Decision For 415 Alan Road 
(640.07) 

Recommendation:  That Council deny the appeal of Steven Amerikaner, agent 
for Mr. and Mrs. Andrew Seybold, and uphold the Planning Commission decision 
to deny the initiation of the Zone Change, General Plan Amendment and Local 
Coastal Program Amendment at 415 Alan Road. 
  

MAYOR AND COUNCIL REPORTS 

17. Subject:  Interviews For City Advisory Groups (140.05) 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Hold interviews of applicants to various City Advisory Groups; and 
B. Continue interviews of applicants to November 17, 2009, at 6:00 p.m. 
  (Estimated Time:  4:00 p.m.) 

 

COUNCIL AND STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 
 

COUNCILMEMBER COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENT REPORTS 
 

RECESS 
EVENING SESSION 

11/10/2009 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 6 



EVENING SESSION 
 

RECONVENE 
 

ROLL CALL 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

18. Subject:  Appeal Of Planning Commission Decision For 1900 Lasuen Road, 
El Encanto Hotel (640.07) 

Recommendation:  That Council deny the appeal filed by Trevor Martinson and 
uphold the Planning Commission approval of the Modifications and Transfer of 
Existing Development Rights for the project revisions proposed at the El Encanto 
Hotel. 
  

ADJOURNMENT 

To Monday, November 16, 2009, at 1:30 p.m. at 226 and 232 Eucalyptus Hill Drive.  
(See Agenda Item No. 14) 

 
 

11/10/2009 Santa Barbara City Council Agenda Page 7 



File Code No. 120.03 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 

MEETING AGENDA 

 

DATE: November 10, 2009 Roger L. Horton, Chair  
TIME: 12:30 p.m.  Helene Schneider 
PLACE: David Gebhard Public Meeting Room Iya Falcone 
 630 Garden Street  
 
James L. Armstrong  Robert Samario  
City Administrator Interim Finance Director 

 
 

ITEM TO BE CONSIDERED: 
 
Subject:  Fiscal Year 2010 Balancing And Adjustments 
 
Recommendation:  That the Finance Committee recommend that Council: 
A. Approve the adjustments to budgeted revenues and expenditures for Fiscal 

Year 2010 as detailed in the Summary of Recommended Budget Adjustments to 
address the projected revenue shortfall in the General Fund; and 

B. Adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of Santa 
Barbara Amending Resolution No. 09-043, Establishing Certain City Fees, 
Including Water and Wastewater Rates, to Authorize Adjustments to Parks and 
Recreation Fees and Adjust the Fee for Reserving Library Materials. 

 
(See Council Agenda Item No. 15) 

 
 



Agenda Item No._____________ 

File Code No.  410.01 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: November 10, 2009 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Administrator’s Office 
 
SUBJECT: Employee Recognition – Service Award Pins 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
That Council authorize the City Administrator to express the City’s appreciation to 
employees who are eligible to receive service award pins for their years of service 
through November 30, 2009. 
  
DISCUSSION: 
 
Since 1980, the City Employees’ Recognition Program has recognized length of City 
Service. Service award pins are presented to employees for every five years of service. 
Those employees achieving 25 years of service or more are eligible to receive their pins 
in front of the City Council. 
 
Attached is a list of those employees who will be awarded pins for their service through 
November 30, 2009. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT: November 2009 Service Awards 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Marcelo A. López, Administrative Services Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



ATTACHMENT 
 

NOVEMBER 2009 SERVICE AWARDS 
 

November 10, 2009 Council Meeting 
 
 
5 YEARS 
Christie Lanning, Human Resources Analyst, Administrative Services 
 
10 YEARS 
Samuel Blackwell, Building Inspector, Community Development 
Brian Gronnebeck, Senior Building Inspector, Community Development 
Darrell Shon, Laboratory Analyst II, Public Works 
 
15 YEARS  
John Gordon, Senior Streets Maintenance Worker, Public Works 
 
20 YEARS  
Karen Flores, Business Officer Supervisor, Police 
David Whitham, Police Lieutenant, Police 
David Hedges, Police Officer, Police 
Nancy Stecki, Administrative Specialist, Public Works 
 
25 YEARS  
Charles Brown, Survey Party Chief, Public Works 
John Krohta, Airport Patrol Officer II, Airport 



PROCLAI,4no.N
Lad Do,,enü Jiuknrc W,n ‘h

oiember 2069

rHrRE4s. ‘.j.:<a. bd Dzk J!denct ., ,: .u.M;$Xi

:.%,):!,,, oV. r,.,,( Fe p,orec.r teoJ.rag[
(Q,wTeys Q’ ocr: ? abrse: o,d

4 hER EA 5, dom&stic oit,c rQcIe more rhan e:c t ef Jwr wvmn.
ek a.rrorsv impact Iieyr md

WHEREAS l),,nwstie Va)ienc om ond ;tlet .coeiol pohIm Ihot
cisrs in oil e.o,omxc scg.eJrrs of evdgw. hr all jrlute.c. ard ffi oil
,)unFr(es of th vrId: a,,d

WH&REA S. thothg Dm, l, 1,eanr cy:tt,
J:(r rdb?g ,.r homas a, 0?))

W IIFRFIS r’:. 4&,fçia Capaign w EJ Dtac
_ cte: -_..,,.

.;ey nj r,g .s ore Jr . , n :dei
ra e5ae:;.. .]r.;.:-..:.’:-::

•IIFRC45 S,r:4:.: ... u.:, .J .

, cofled COL UK WE PLRPLE wfrncei he
j,e.)iSe rrrth,,roeron !ul) n•’(•e— available p &ttft, of domese:

OW THEREFORE- I. MARTY RLCM. by ri,e ci the. mrthot& hd
,r, ma as Mayor q( the C4y f Santa Brbara. rh, hereby p,-ocloim .Mrrem&r
WOO END OO.WESTIC IIOLEF.t-L- ,WO,%711 with SpCC)l n)githm to

?!pimaI.e of Caothro R: Eego,r far thefr pork?)a ,.,rfribn rions Co n?a?)y
..arnmithrs .for ad of human righr. . .i sseminatior,

flY inSS RFREOF I ha, .,?)seC my hotol
Srr,.a

S’r.nn’Zr

. .—c r.t±.

-7; •
• •,

,•

MA YBLL.M, u4V08



 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

 
 

ADJOURNED REGULAR MEETING 
October 5, 2009 

2105 ANACAPA STREET 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Marty Blum called the meeting to order at 1:40 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Councilmembers present:  Iya G. Falcone, Dale Francisco (1:50 p.m.), Roger L. Horton, 
Grant House, Helene Schneider, Mayor Blum. 
Councilmembers absent:  Das Williams. 
Staff present:  City Administrator James L. Armstrong. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
No one wished to speak. 
 
NOTICES 

The City Clerk has on Thursday, October 1, 2009, posted this agenda in the Office of 
the City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside balcony of City Hall, 
and on the Internet. 
 
SITE VISIT 

Subject:  2105 Anacapa Street 

Recommendation:  That Council make a site visit to the property located at 2105 
Anacapa Street, which is the subject of an appeal hearing scheduled for October 6, 
2009, at 2:00 p.m. 
 
Speakers: 

Staff:  Planning Technician Anthony Boughman. 
 

Discussion: 
Mr. Boughman reviewed the proposed project, including its building heights and 
floor area ratios. 

10/5/2009 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 1 



ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mayor Blum adjourned the meeting at 2:01 p.m. 
 
 
SANTA BARBARA CITY COUNCIL SANTA BARBARA 
  CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 
 
 
 
  ATTEST:       
MARTY BLUM  SUSAN TSCHECH, CMC 
MAYOR  DEPUTY CITY CLERK 
 

10/5/2009 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 2 



 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
October 6, 2009 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, 735 ANACAPA STREET 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Marty Blum called the meeting to order at 2:02 p.m.  (The Ordinance Committee 
met at 12:00 noon.  The Finance Committee, which ordinarily meets at 12:30 p.m., did 
not meet on this date.) 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Mayor Blum. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Councilmembers present:  Iya G. Falcone, Dale Francisco, Grant House, Helene 
Schneider, Das Williams, Mayor Blum. 
Councilmembers absent:  Roger L. Horton. 
Staff present:  City Administrator James L. Armstrong, City Attorney Stephen P. Wiley, 
Deputy City Clerk Susan Tschech. 
 
CEREMONIAL ITEMS  
 
1. Subject:  2009 Annual Charitable Giving Campaign (170.01)    
 

Recommendation:  That Council receive a report from the Chairperson on the 
City’s 2009 Annual Charitable Giving Campaign. 
 
Documents: 

October 6, 2009, report from the Public Works Director. 
 
Speakers: 
 - Staff:  Public Works Director Christine Andersen. 
 - Santa Barbara United Way:  President Paul Didier.   
 
By consensus, the Council received the report. 

10/6/2009 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 1 



2. Subject:  Employee Recognition - Service Award Pins (410.01)    
 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the City Administrator to express the 
City’s appreciation to employees who are eligible to receive service award pins 
for their years of service through October 31, 2009. 
 
Documents: 

October 6, 2009, report from the Administrative Services Director. 
 
Speakers: 

Staff:  City Administrator James Armstrong, Award Recipients Steven 
Faulstich and Michael Moses. 

 
By consensus, the Council approved the recommendation.  The following 
employees were recognized: 

 
5-Year Pin 

Brenda Beltz, Community Development 
Jose Latorre, Police 

10-Year Pin 
Traci Alvarez, Public Works 
Calli Marquez, Public Works 

Barbara Carey, Library 
Sharon Staufenberg, Parks and Recreation 

Nancy Rapp, Parks and Recreation 
Elizabeth Williamson, Waterfront 

15-Year Pin 
John Williams, Police 
Tara O’Reilly, Library 

Matthew Donahue, Airport 
20-Year Pin 

Janette Carr, Community Development 
Freda Markowitz, Parks and Recreation 

25-Year Pin 
Ida Morozowsky, Finance 

Steven Faulstich, Community Development 
Michael Moses, Fire 

Fernando Rodriguez, Police 
30-Year Pin 

John Kattai, Police 
Myra Nicholas, Library 

 

10/6/2009 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 2 



PUBLIC COMMENT  
 
Speakers:  Mayor Blum made comments regarding the upcoming City election.  Other 
speakers were Darlena Moore; Wayne Scoles; Philip Wyatt; David Daniel Diaz; Ruth 
Wilson; Jack Wilson; Ralph Fertig, Santa Barbara Bicycle Coalition; Tony Vassallo; AIE 
(Kate Smith). 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR (Item Nos. 3 – 12) 
 
The titles of the resolution and ordinances related to Consent Calendar items were 
read.  
 
Motion:   

Councilmembers House/Falcone to approve the Consent Calendar as 
recommended.   

Vote:  
Unanimous roll call vote (Absent:  Councilmember Horton).  

 
3. Subject:  Agreement For Surface Water And Groundwater Monitoring (540.10)   
 

Recommendation:  That Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a 
joint funding agreement with United States Geological Survey (USGS) for water 
resources investigations related to surface water and groundwater 
measurements for the period of November 1, 2009, through October 31, 2010, 
with a City cost share not to exceed $109,100.   
 
Action:  Approved the recommendation; Agreement No. 23,214 (October 6, 2009, 
report from the Public Works Director).  

 
4. Subject:  Resolution To Establish An Easement For Cacique Street On City 

Property Between Highway 101 And Milpas Street (330.03)   
 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Dedicating an Easement for Public 
Street and All Related Purposes on the Portion of Cacique Street Previously 
Vacated by Resolution No. 89-114, Owned by the City of Santa Barbara, Santa 
Barbara County Assessor's Parcel No. 017-251-018, for the Undercrossing of 
Cacique Street at State Highway 101 Between Milpas Street and Alisos Street.   
 
Action:  Approved the recommendation; Resolution No. 09-082 (October 6, 2009, 
report from the Public Works Director; proposed resolution).   

 

10/6/2009 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 3 



5. Subject:  Adoption Of Ordinance For 2030 Las Canoas Road Annexation 
(680.04)   

 
Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Amending Chapter 28.12 (Zone Map) of 
Title 28 of the Municipal Code Pertaining to the Zoning of Certain Real Property 
Upon Annexation to Assessor's Parcel Number 021-030-039 located at 730 Las 
Canoas Place.   
 
Action:  Approved the recommendation; Ordinance No. 5502.   

 
6. Subject:  Adoption Of Ordinance Concerning Undergrounding Utilities And Time 

Limits To Rebuild Nonconforming Properties Damaged Or Destroyed In Natural 
Disasters (530.07)   

 
Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, An Ordinance of 
the Council of the City of Santa Barbara Amending Section 22.38.050 of the 
Santa Barbara Municipal Code Regarding Utility Undergrounding Requirements 
in Connection with Construction Projects, and Amending Section 28.87.038 of 
the Municipal Code Regarding the Reconstruction of Nonconforming Buildings 
Damaged or Destroyed by Natural Disasters.   
 
Action:  Approved the recommendation; Ordinance No. 5503.   

 
7. Subject:  Receipt Of Energy Efficiency And Conservation Block Grants (630.06)   
 

Recommendation:  That Council:  
A. Authorize the receipt of American Reinvestment and Reinvestment Act 

(ARRA) grant funds totaling $868,200 through the Energy Efficiency and 
Conservation Block Grants (EECBG) program;  

B. Increase appropriations and estimated revenues by $818,200 in the Intra-
City Services Fund for the portion of the grant to be used for energy 
efficiency and conservation projects;  

C. Increase appropriations and estimated revenues by $50,000 in the 
General Fund, Community Development Department, budget for the 
portion of the grant to be used for a Climate Action Plan;  

D. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a contract with AG 
Mechanical Engineers for an amount not to exceed $75,230 for the design 
of standard Heating, Ventilation and Air Conditioning (HVAC) systems and 
control systems to be used for all City facilities; and  

E. Authorize the Public Works Director to have Change Order authority of up 
to $20,000 for extra services of AG Mechanical Engineers that may result 
from necessary changes in the scope of work.   

 
Action:  Approved the recommendations; Contract No. 23,215 (October 6, 2009, 
report from the Public Works Director).   

10/6/2009 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 4 



10/6/2009 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 5 

8. Subject:  Golf Course Safety Improvement Master Plan (570.02)   
 

Recommendation:  That Council approve a change order of $10,000 for the Golf 
Course Safety Improvement Master Plan agreement with Cupp Design, contract 
number 21,631, negotiated in March 2005 in the amount of $150,000, to cover 
any cost increases that may result from extra work.   
 
Action:  Approved the recommendation (October 6, 2009, report from the Parks 
and Recreation Director).   

 
9. Subject:  Set A Date For Public Hearing Regarding Appeal Of Planning 

Commission Approval For 1900 Lasuen Road (640.07)   
 

Recommendation:  That Council set the date of November 10, 2009, at 6:00 p.m. 
for hearing the appeal filed by Trevor Martinson of the Planning Commission 
approval of an application for the El Encanto Hotel and Garden Villas property 
owned by Orient Express Hotels, Trains & Cruises and located at 1900 Lasuen 
Road, Assessor's Parcel No. 019-170-022, R-2/4.0/R-H Two-Family 
Residential/4 Units per Acre/Resort-Residential Hotel Zones, General Plan 
Designation: Residential, 3 Units per Acre. The project is a revision to the 
approved El Encanto Hotel Revised Master Plan and consists primarily of 
revisions to the design of the northwest corner of the project site. The proposal 
includes three one-story cottages above an underground valet parking garage. 
The discretionary applications required for the project are Modifications and a 
Transfer of Existing Development Rights.   

 
Action:  Approved the recommendation (September 21, 2009, letter of appeal).  

 
NOTICES  
 
10. The City Clerk has on Thursday, October 1, 2009, posted this agenda in the 

Office of the City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside 
balcony of City Hall, and on the Internet.   

 
11. Cancellation of the regular Redevelopment Agency meeting of October 6, 2009, 

due to a lack of business.   
 
12. A City Council site visit is scheduled for Monday, October 12, 2009, at 1:30 p.m. 

to the property located at 1642 and 1654 Calle Canon and 2418 Calle Montilla, 
which is the subject of an appeal hearing set for October 13, 2009, at 2:00 p.m.   

 
This concluded the Consent Calendar.  

 



REPORT FROM THE ORDINANCE COMMITTEE  
 
Ordinance Committee Chair Das Williams reported that the Committee resumed its 
discussion of possible amendments to the Medical Cannabis Dispensary Ordinance.  
The Committee has finalized certain recommendations for the ordinance's revision but 
will continue to discuss other aspects before submitting the issue to Council.  
 
CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS  
 
CITY ADMINISTRATOR  
 
13. Subject:  Annual Performance Management Program Report For Fiscal Year 

2009 And Comparative Indicators Report (170.01)    
 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Receive a status report on the City’s performance management program 

and a summary of department performance highlights for Fiscal Year 
2009; and 

B. Receive a report on how the City of Santa Barbara compares with other 
California communities on key indicators. 

 
Documents: 
 - October 6, 2009, report from the City Administrator. 
 - PowerPoint presentation prepared and made by Staff. 
 
Speakers: 

Staff:  City Administrator James Armstrong, Administrative Analyst Lori 
Pedersen. 

 
Councilmember Falcone left the meeting at 3:01 p.m. and returned at 3:17 p.m.  
Councilmember Williams left the meeting at 3:06 p.m. and returned at 3:13 p.m.; he left 
again at 3:26 p.m. and returned at 3:32 p.m. 

 
By consensus, the Council received the reports.  

 
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT  
 
14. Subject:  Authorization To Terminate The Green Mobile Home Park 

Encroachment Permit (330.10)    
 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Authorize and direct the Public Works Director to terminate a portion of the 

Encroachment Permit, Agreement No. 16,786, Ordinance No. 4788, for 
the Green Mobile Home Park (Park), from 120 feet south of Punta Gorda 
Street to Highway 101, effective September 1, 2010, in accordance with 
the terms of the Agreement; and 

(Cont'd)

10/6/2009 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 6 



14. (Cont'd) 
 

B. Authorize the Public Works Director to terminate the remainder of the 
Encroachment Permit effective September 1, 2011. 

 
Documents: 
 - October 6, 2009, report from the Public Works Director. 
 - PowerPoint presentation prepared and made by Staff. 
 
Speakers: 
 - Staff:  Assistant Public Works Director/City Engineer Pat Kelly, City 

Attorney Stephen Wiley, Housing Programs Supervisor Steven Faulstich. 
 - Members of the Public:  Dennis Merenbach, Attorney representing the 

Green Mobile Home Park; Mario Hernandez.   
 
Motion:   

Councilmember Francisco/Mayor Blum to approve the recommendations 
and request that the City Housing Authority put the displaced residents at 
the top of all housing waiting lists for which they meet the qualifications.   

Vote:  
Unanimous voice vote (Absent: Councilmember Horton).  

 
RECESS  
 
4:47 p.m. to 5:05 p.m.  Councilmember Williams was absent when the Council 
reconvened.  
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS  
 
15. Subject:  Appeal Of The Single Family Design Board Approval For 2105 Anacapa 

Street (640.07)    
 

Recommendation:  That Council deny the appeal of Tony Fischer on behalf of 
the Friends of Upper-Anacapa Street, and uphold the Single Family Design 
Board (SFDB) Preliminary Approval of the application of Barbara E. Matthews for 
the proposed demolition of an existing single-family residence and detached 
garage and construction of a two-story single-family residence and attached 
garage. 
 
Documents: 
 - October 6, 2009, report from the Community Development Director. 
 - PowerPoint presentation prepared and made by Staff. 
 - September 23, 2009, letter from Richard Monk, Attorney representing the 

Applicant. 
 

(Cont'd) 

10/6/2009 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 7 



15. (Cont'd) 
 

Documents (Cont'd): 
 - October 3, 2009, letter from Donna Blakemore. 
 - October 5, 2009, letter from Jean Hall. 
 
Public Comment Opened: 

5:06 p.m. 
 
Speakers: 
 - Staff:  Planning Technician Tony Boughman. 
 - Single Family Design Board:  Chair Bill Mahan. 
 - Appellant:  Tony Fischer. 
 - Applicant:  Architect Britt Jewett, Attorney Richard Monk. 
 - Members of the Public:  Frank Kelly, Dorothy Ludington, Mina Goena-

Welch, Sarah Dobbs, Billie Maunz, Kathy Morales, Martin Morales, Oscar 
Hensgen, Sarada Lewis, Christine Boesch, Chuck Maunz. 

 
Public Comment Closed: 

6:19 p.m. 
 
Motion:   

Councilmembers Falcone/Schneider to approve the recommendation. 
Vote:  

Majority voice vote (Noes:  Councilmembers Francisco, House; Absent:  
Councilmembers Horton, Williams).  

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mayor Blum adjourned the meeting at  6:41 p.m. to Monday, October 12, 2009, at 1:30 
p.m. at 1642 and 1654 Calle Canon and 2418 Calle Montilla. 
 
 
SANTA BARBARA CITY COUNCIL SANTA BARBARA 
  CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 
 
 
 
  ATTEST:       
MARTY BLUM  SUSAN TSCHECH, CMC 
MAYOR  DEPUTY CITY CLERK 
 

10/6/2009 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 8 



 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
October 20, 2009 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, 735 ANACAPA STREET 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Marty Blum called the joint meeting of the Council and the Redevelopment 
Agency to order at 2:09 p.m.  (The Ordinance Committee met at 12:00 p.m.  The 
Finance Committee met at 1:00 p.m.)  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Mayor Blum. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Councilmembers present:  Iya G. Falcone, Dale Francisco (2:10 p.m.), Roger L. Horton, 
Grant House, Helene Schneider, Das Williams, Mayor Blum. 
Councilmembers absent:  None. 
Staff present:  City Administrator James L. Armstrong, City Attorney Stephen P. Wiley, 
Deputy City Clerk Brenda Alcazar. 
 
CEREMONIAL ITEMS  
 
1.  Subject:  2009 Solar Design Recognition Awards (630.06)    
 

Recommendation:  That Council grant the 2009 Solar Design Recognition 
Awards. 

 
Documents: 
      - October 20, 2009, report from the Community Development Director. 
      - October 20, 2009, PowerPoint presentation prepared and made by staff. 

 
Speakers: 
      - Staff:  Project Planner Heather Baker. 
      - Members of the Public:  Connie Hannah, Santa Barbara League of 

Women Voters; Megan Birney, Community Environmental Council. 
 

By consensus, Mayor Blum presented certificates and plaques to recipients of 
the 2009 Solar Design Recognition Awards.   

10/20/2009 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 1 



PUBLIC COMMENT  
 
Speakers:  David Daniel Diaz; Daniel Knapp; Gert Walter; AIE, the person (Kate Smith); 
Tony Vassallo. 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR (Item Nos. 2 – 8 and 12)  
 
Motion: 
 Councilmembers Horton/Schneider to approve the Consent Calendar as 

recommended. 
Vote: 
 Unanimous roll call vote. 
 
2.  Subject:  Fiscal Year 2010 Interim Financial Statements For The Two Months 

Ended August 31, 2009 (250.02)    
 

Recommendation:  That Council accept the Fiscal Year 2010 Interim Financial 
Statements for the Two Months Ended August 31, 2009. 

 
Action:  Approved the recommendation (October 20, 2009, report from the 
Interim Finance Director).   

 
3.  Subject:  Donation From The Insurance Professionals Of Santa Barbara (520.03)    
 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Accept a donation of $1,500 from the Insurance Professionals of Santa 

Barbara; and 
B. Increase estimated revenues and appropriations by $1,500 in the Fiscal 

Year 2010 General Fund Fire Department, Office of Emergency Services 
budget for the Car Seat and Safety Program. 

 
Action:  Approved the recommendations (October 20, 2009, report from the 
Interim Fire Chief).   

 
4.  Subject:  Contract For Construction Of The Haley At De La Vina Street Bridge 

Replacement Project (530.04)    
 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Award a contract with Lash Construction, Inc. (Lash), waiving minor 

irregularities, in their low bid amount of $4,721,406, for construction of the 
Haley at De La Vina Street Bridge Replacement Project (Project), Bid 
No. 3396; 

B. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a contract and approve 
expenditures up to $472,140 to cover any cost increases that may result 
from contract change orders for extra work and differences between 
estimated bid quantities and actual quantities measured for payment; 

 
(Cont’d) 

10/20/2009 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 2 



4. (Cont’d) 
 
C. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a contract with Mimiaga 

Engineering Group (MEG), in the amount of $886,828 for construction 
management services, and authorize the Public Works Director to approve 
expenditures of up to $88,682 for extra services of MEG that may result 
from necessary changes in the scope of work; 

D. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a contract with Bengal 
Engineering (Bengal), in the amount of $45,000 for design support 
services during construction, and authorize the Public Works Director to 
approve expenditures of up to $4,500 for extra services of Bengal that 
may result from necessary changes in the scope of work; and 

E. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a contract with Ayers & 
Associates (Ayers), in the amount of $55,080 for community outreach 
services. 

 
Action:  Approved the recommendations; Contract Nos. 23,221 - 23,224 
(October 20, 2009, report from the Public Works Director).   

 
5.  Subject:  Acceptance And Appropriation Of American Recovery And 

Reinvestment Act Funding (530.04)    
 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Accept the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) funding in 

the total amount of $3,774,796; and 
B. Increase estimated revenues by $3,774,796 in the Fiscal Year 2010 

Streets Capital Fund, and appropriate $2,674,796 for the Road Overlay 
and Maintenance Project, $800,000 for the Access Ramp and Sidewalk 
Maintenance Project, and $300,000 for the Pedestrian Countdown Timers 
and Battery Backup Upgrades Project. 

 
Action:  Approved the recommendations (October 20, 2009, report from the 
Public Works Director).   

 
6.  Subject:  Self Insured Workers’ Compensation Program Annual Report (350.08) 
 

Recommendation:  That Council receive the Annual Self Insured Workers’ 
Compensation Program Annual Report for the year ended June 30, 2009. 

 
Action:  Approved the recommendation (October 20, 2009, report from the 
Interim Finance Director).   

 

10/20/2009 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 3 



7. Subject:  Appropriation Of Federal Funds For The Boysel Multipurpose Pathway 
(530.04)    

 
Recommendation:  That Council increase estimated revenues and appropriations 
by $7,000 in the Streets Capital Fund for the Right-of-Way Phase of the Jake 
Boysel Multipurpose Pathway Project (Project) funded by the Federal Safe 
Routes to School grant program. 

 
Action:  Approved the recommendation (October 20, 2009, report from the Public 
Works Director).   

 
8.  Subject:  Set A Date For Public Hearing Regarding Appeal Of Planning 

Commission Denial For 617 Bradbury Avenue (640.07)    
 

Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Set the date of December 8, 2009, at 2:00 p.m. for hearing the appeal filed 

by LEED Santa Barbara, LLC, property owner, of the Planning 
Commission denial of an application for property located at 617 Bradbury 
Avenue, Assessor’s Parcel No. 037-122-006, C-2 Commercial Zone, 
General Plan Designation:  Commercial/Residential, 12 Units per Acre.  
The project proposes the demolition of an existing duplex and the 
construction of a 5,488 square-foot, three-story, mixed-use building 
consisting of two residential condominiums, two commercial 
condominiums, and an on-grade parking structure.  The discretionary 
applications required for this project are a Modification and a Tentative 
Subdivision Map; and 

B. Set the date of December 7, 2009, at 1:30 p.m. for a site visit to the 
property located at 617 Bradbury Avenue. 

 
Action:  Approved the recommendations (September 25, 2009, letter of appeal).   

 
Item Nos. 9 – 11 appear in the Redevelopment Agency minutes. 
 
NOTICES 
 
12.  The City Clerk has on Thursday, October 15, 2009, posted this agenda in the 

Office of the City Clerk, on the City Hall Public Notice Board on the outside 
balcony of City Hall, and on the Internet.   

 
This concluded the Consent Calendar. 

 

10/20/2009 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 4 



REPORT FROM THE ORDINANCE COMMITTEE  
 
Ordinance Committee Chair Das Williams reported that the Committee met to continue 
discussion on the Medical Cannabis Dispensary Ordinance revision.  The Committee 
came up with 10 recommendations which will be included in a draft ordinance to be 
reviewed by the Committee in approximately 2 to 3 weeks.  
 
REPORT FROM THE FINANCE COMMITTEE  
 
Finance Committee Chair Roger L. Horton reported that the Committee met to review 
and discuss the City’s and Redevelopment Agency’s Interim Financial Statements for 
the two months ended August 31, 2009; both items were approved by the Council and 
Redevelopment Agency Board as part of this agenda’s Consent Calendar, Item Nos. 2 
and 10, respectively. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ADMINISTRATIVE AND ATTORNEY REPORTS  
 
FINANCE DEPARTMENT  
 
13. Subject:  Resolution Approving The City’s Participation In The Property Tax 

Securitization Program (270.06)    
 

Recommendation:  That Council adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution 
Approving the Form of and Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of a Purchase 
and Sale Agreement and Related Documents with Respect to the Sale of the 
Seller’s Proposition 1A Receivable from the State; and Directing and Authorizing 
Certain Other Actions in Connection Therewith. 

 
Documents: 
      - October 20, 2009, report from the Interim Finance Director. 
      - Proposed Resolution. 
      - October 20, 2009, PowerPoint presentation prepared and made by staff. 

 
The title of the resolution was read. 

 
Speakers: 
       Staff:  Interim Finance Director Robert Samario.   

 
Motion:   

Councilmembers Horton/Williams to approve the recommendation; 
Resolution No. 09-085; Agreement No. 23,225.   

Vote:  
Unanimous roll call vote.  

 

10/20/2009 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 5 



10/20/2009 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 6 

14.  Subject:  Release Of Conversion Technology RFP And Project Cost-Sharing 
With The County Of Santa Barbara (630.01)    

 
Recommendation:  That Council: 
A. Receive a report on the release and subsequent schedule of events 

related to the Request for Proposals (RFP) for the Conversion Technology 
(CT) project at the Tajiguas Landfill; 

B. Authorize the Finance Director to enter into a cost-sharing agreement with 
the County of Santa Barbara in an amount not to exceed $66,650, for a 
new contract with Alternative Resources, Incorporated (ARI), for the 
evaluation of proposals and the selection of a CT vendor; and 

C. Increase Fiscal Year 2010 Solid Waste Fund appropriations by $46,650 
for the unbudgeted amount needed to fully reimburse the County for the 
City’s portion of costs related to the new contract with ARI. 

 
Documents: 
      - October 20, 2009, report from the Interim Finance Director. 
      - October 20, 2009, PowerPoint presentation prepared and made by staff. 

 
Speakers: 
      - Staff:  Interim Finance Director Robert Samario, Environmental Services 

Supervisor Stephen MacIntosh. 
      - County of Santa Barbara:  Mark Schleich, Resource Recovery & Waste 

Management Deputy Director. 
 
Motion:   

Councilmembers Falcone/Williams to approve recommendations B and C; 
Agreement No. 23,226.   

Vote:  
Unanimous voice vote.  

 
MAYOR AND COUNCIL REPORTS  
 
15.  Subject:  Request From Councilmembers Schneider And Williams Regarding 

Amending The Dance Permit Ordinance (520.04)    
 

Recommendation:  That Council consider the request from Councilmembers 
Schneider and Williams to refer amending the Dance Permit Ordinance to the 
Ordinance Committee. 

 
Documents: 

October 20, 2009, report from the Assistant City Administrator. 
 

(Cont’d) 



15. (Cont’d) 
 

Speakers: 
      - Members of the Public:  Dana Walters, Reds; Ron Glover. 
      - Staff:  Police Chief Camerino Sanchez, City Attorney Stephen Wiley.   

 
Motion:   

Councilmembers House/Horton to forward this request to the Ordinance 
Committee and the Fire and Police Commission for discussion.   

Vote: 
Majority voice vote (Noes:  Councilmembers Francisco, Falcone).  

 
RECESS  
 
Mayor Blum recessed the meeting at 3:53 p.m. in order for the Council to reconvene in 
closed session for Item No. 16.  No reportable action is anticipated.  
 
CLOSED SESSIONS  
 
16.  Subject:  Conference With Legal Counsel - Anticipated Litigation (160.03)    
 

Recommendation:  That Council hold a closed session to consider significant 
exposure to litigation (one potential case) pursuant to subsection (b) of section 
54956.9 of the Government Code and take appropriate action as needed. 

Scheduling:  Duration, 15 minutes; anytime 
Report:  None anticipated 

 
Documents: 

October 20, 2009, report from the City Attorney. 
 

Time: 
3:58 p.m. - 4:12 p.m.  

 
 No report made. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mayor Blum adjourned the meeting at 4:12 p.m. 
 
 
SANTA BARBARA CITY COUNCIL SANTA BARBARA 
  CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 
 
 
 
  ATTEST:       
MARTY BLUM  BRENDA ALCAZAR, CMC 
MAYOR  DEPUTY CITY CLERK 

10/20/2009 Santa Barbara City Council Minutes Page 7 



Agenda Item No._____________ 

File Code No.  240.03 
 

AGENDA DATE: November 10, 2009 

TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 

FROM: Housing and Redevelopment Division, Community Development 
Department 

SUBJECT: TEFRA Hearing For Mental Health Association’s Purchase Of 
Facilities At 617 Garden Street 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 

That Council hold a public hearing and adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the 
City Council of the City of Santa Barbara Approving the Issuance of Bonds by the 
California Municipal Finance Authority in an Amount not to Exceed $2,000,000 for the 
Purpose of Financing the Acquisition of Facilities for the Mental Health Association in 
Santa Barbara County, and Certain Other Matters Relating Thereto. 

DISCUSSION: 
The Mental Health Association in Santa Barbara County (MHA) is nearing completion of 
its new mixed-use building at 617 Garden Street. The building is a complex structure that 
includes three separate condominiums: 

• Condominium No. 1:  51 rental housing units, including 12 units for low income 
downtown workers, 38 units for very-low income MHA clients, and one manager’s 
unit; 

• Condominium No. 2:  Office space of about 5,000 square feet for MHA and other 
nonprofits, plus  Fellowship Club space of about 5,200 square feet for MHA clients; 
and 

• Condominium No. 3:  Office space of approximately 3,000 square feet under 
option to purchase by the City of Santa Barbara. 

 
The building is substantially complete and operating under a temporary certificate of 
occupancy.  Condominium No. 1 and Condominium No. 2 are occupied. Issuance of the 
final certification of occupancy is pending completion of waterproofing repair work in the 
subterranean parking garage caused by water intrusion.  It is anticipated that the work will 
be complete and final certificate of occupancy issued in November 2009. As part of the 
permanent financing for MHA’s commercial office space, MHA will be converting a loan 
with Santa Barbara Bank & Trust from taxable to tax-exempt (thereby enabling MHA  

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
CITY COUNCIL A G E N D A  R E P O R T  



City Council Agenda Report 
TEFRA Hearing For Mental Health Association’s Purchase Of Facilities At 617 Garden 
Street  
November 10, 2009 
Page 2 

to borrow additional principal). Whenever tax-exempt debt is to be issued, the federal Tax 
Equity and Fiscal Responsibility Act of 1982 (TEFRA) requires that, after holding a 
noticed public hearing, the bond issue be approved by the legislative body for the 
jurisdiction within which the facilities are located. Council has held numerous such 
TEFRA hearings, and no financial obligation on the part of the City or the Agency is 
implied or created. 
 
Council held a TEFRA hearing for the MHA commercial financing on October 28, 2008. 
However, federal tax regulations require that the public hearing occur no earlier than one 
year before the issuance of the bonds.  Given the unforeseen delays in completing the 
project, a new public hearing is required. 
 
The California Municipal Finance Authority would be the issuer of the tax-exempt bonds, 
and its attorney has prepared a resolution for Council adoption, which has been reviewed 
by the City Attorney. Public notice of the TEFRA hearing has been published as required 
by law. Other than holding the TEFRA hearing and granting approval, the City would play 
no role in the issuance of the bonds. 
 
The City and its Redevelopment Agency have provided strong support to the project over 
the years – including $5.46 million in loan and grant funds, community priority designation 
and transfer of an Agency surface parking lot. Staff recommends that Council hold the 
TEFRA hearing and approve the bond issuance by adopting the resolution.  
 
 
PREPARED BY: Brian Bosse, Housing and Redevelopment Manager/ SK 

SUBMITTED BY: Paul Casey, Community Development Director 

APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 
 



 RESOLUTION NO.    

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
SANTA BARBARA APPROVING THE ISSUANCE OF 
BONDS BY THE CALIFORNIA MUNICIPAL FINANCE 
AUTHORITY IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 
$2,000,000 FOR THE PURPOSE OF FINANCING THE 
ACQUISITION OF FACILITIES FOR THE MENTAL 
HEALTH ASSOCIATION IN SANTA BARBARA COUNTY, 
AND CERTAIN OTHER MATTERS RELATING THERETO 

WHEREAS, the Mental Health Association in Santa Barbara County (“MHA”) has 
requested that the California Municipal Finance Authority (the “Authority”) issue one or 
more series of revenue bonds, or otherwise borrow funds, in an aggregate principal 
amount not to exceed $2,000,000 (the “Bonds”), and to lend the proceeds of the Bonds 
to Building Hope II, LLC, a California limited liability company of which MHA is the sole 
member (the “Borrower”) for the purpose of financing or refinancing costs of the 
acquisition by the Borrower of a condominium interest in a facility being constructed at 
617 Garden Street in the City of Santa Barbara (the “City”) to be used as administrative 
office and programmatic space by MHA (the “Facilities”); 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 147(f) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the 
“Code”), in order for the interest on the Bonds to be tax-exempt, the issuance of the 
Bonds by the Authority must be approved by the City Council following a public hearing 
regarding the proposed financing because the Facilities are located within the City; 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City (the “City Council”) is the elected legislative 
body of the City and is one of the applicable elected representatives required to approve 
the issuance of the Bonds under Section 147(f) of the Code; 

WHEREAS, on October 28, 2008, the City Council held a public hearing regarding the 
proposed issuance of the Bonds by the Authority to finance the Facilities and, following 
the public hearing, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 08-099 approving the 
issuance of the Bonds by the Authority; 

WHEREAS, applicable federal tax regulations require that the public hearing and 
elected representative approval of the Bonds occur not earlier than one year prior to the 
date of issuance of the Bonds, and it now appears that, due to unforeseen delays, the 
Bonds may not be issued until after October 27, 2009; 

WHEREAS, MHA has requested that the City Council hold a new public hearing 
regarding the proposed financing and once again approve the issuance of the Bonds by 
the Authority so that the interest on the Bonds can be tax-exempt; 

WHEREAS, the Bonds proposed to be issued, the proceeds of which will be used to 
finance or refinance the costs of the acquisition of the Facilities, will be an indebtedness 
of the Authority payable from certain revenues pledged therefore and generally 
representing amounts paid by the Borrower or MHA, and the City will not be asked to 

1 



approve or execute any of the documents related to the Bonds or the financing 
program; and, in addition, any disclosure materials prepared for the financing program 
which may be used to market the Bonds will not contain any information regarding the 
City and will not include the City’s name other than possibly with respect to the location 
of the Facilities; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 147(f) of the Code, the City Council has, following 
notice duly given, held a new public hearing regarding the issuance of the Bonds, and 
now desires to again approve the issuance of the Bonds by the Authority. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA 
BARBARA, AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. The Council hereby approves the issuance and sale of the Bonds by the 
Authority. It is the purpose and intent of the Council that this Resolution constitute 
approval of the issuance of the Bonds by the Authority, for the purposes of Section 
147(f) of the Code, by the applicable elected representative of the governmental unit 
having jurisdiction over the area in which the Facilities are to be located, in accordance 
with said Section 147(f). 

SECTION 2. The adoption of this Resolution shall not obligate the City or any 
department thereof to (a) provide any financing for the Facilities; (b) approve any 
application or request for or take any other action in connection with any planning 
approval, permit or other action necessary for the construction or operation of the 
Facilities; (c) make any contribution or advance any funds whatsoever to the Authority; 
or (d) take any further action with respect to the Authority or its membership therein. 

SECTION 3. The officers of the City are hereby authorized and directed, jointly and 
severally, to do any and all things and to execute and deliver any and all documents 
which they deem necessary or advisable in order to carry out, give effect to and comply 
with the terms and intent of this Resolution and the financing transaction approved 
hereby. 

SECTION 4. The City Clerk shall forward a certified copy of this Resolution to the bond 
counsel for the Bonds, addressed as follows: 

Paul J. Thimmig, Esq. 
Quint & Thimmig LLP 
575 Market Street, Suite 3600 
San Francisco, CA 94105-2874 

SECTION 5. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage. 

2 



Agenda Item No._____________ 

File Code No.  540.13 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: November 10, 2009 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Water Resources Division, Public Works 
 
SUBJECT: Approval Of Emergency Purchase Order And Approval Of Sole 

Source Vendor For Repairs To Equipment At El Estero Wastewater 
Treatment Plan 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council: 
 
A. Retroactively approve emergency Purchase Order No. 382921 in the amount of 

$64,148 to JWC Environmental for parts and labor needed to repair existing rag 
and trash removal equipment at the El Estero Wastewater Treatment Plant 
(El Estero); and 

B. Approve JWC Environmental as the sole source vendor for future parts and repair 
of Wastewater influent screening equipment. 

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The rag and trash removal equipment that is currently in place at El Estero has 
deteriorated to a point where one of the two units is no longer operational, and the other 
is showing severe wear and is at risk of failure.  Failure to remove rags at the 
headworks will result in problems throughout the entire plant, including in the digesters. 
 
The failed equipment on one of the influent channels prohibits the use of that channel.  
Consequently, during high flows when we would normally be operating both units, some 
of the flow must be sent through the center bypass channel.  If both channels fail, we 
will be forced to use the center bypass channel at all times - reducing the influent 
capacity to the plant. This could cause backups in the collection system during periods 
of rainfall. As a result, staff issued an emergency purchase order to JWC Environmental 
to repair the existing rag and trash removal equipment.  
 
The equipment used for removing rags and trash at the headworks of El Estero is 
manufactured by JWC Environmental and they are the only supplier of the parts for 
repair.  We are currently in design to install a completely new system for rag removal at 
El Estero, but the earliest the new installation could occur is in 2011, and the estimated 
cost for the project is $4 million.  Staff anticipates that other repairs may be necessary 
to keep this equipment in service until it can be replaced.  Because JWC is the only 



Council Agenda Report 
Approval Of Emergency Purchase Order And Approval Of Sole Source Vendor For 
Repairs To Equipment At El Estero Wastewater Treatment Plan 
November 10, 2009 
Page 2 
 

 

supplier able to provide the appropriate parts, we are seeking to have them designated 
as a sole source vendor for this equipment should additional equipment or repairs be 
required.   
 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
The cost of repair for the two units is $64,148.  It is anticipated that these repairs will 
allow continued operation of the equipment through the winter; however, additional 
repairs may be required prior to the replacement of the equipment. There are sufficient 
funds in the Wastewater Fund budget to cover this cost. 
 
 
PREPARED BY: Rebecca Bjork, Water Resources Manager/LC/mh 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Christine F. Andersen, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 
 
 



Agenda Item No._____________ 

File Code No.  530.04 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE:  November 10, 2009 
 
TO:    Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM:   Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT:  Contract For Design Services For The Zone 4 Pavement 

Maintenance Project And Acceptance Of Grant Funds 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council: 
 
A. Approve the selection of Flowers and Associates (Flowers) to provide professional 

engineering design and construction management services for the annual 
Pavement Maintenance Project scheduled for Fiscal Years 2010 through 2012; 

B. Authorize the Public Works Director to execute a contract with Flowers in the 
amount of $59,280 for design services for the Zone 4 Pavement Maintenance 
Project (Project), and approve expenditures of up to $5,928 for extra services of 
Flowers that may result from necessary changes in the scope of work; and 

C. Accept Local Surface Transportation Program (LSTP) Grant funding in the 
amount of $347,000, and increase appropriations and estimated revenues by 
$347,000 in the Fiscal Year 2010 Streets Capital Fund for the Project. 

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The Engineering Division hires design and construction consultant services for delivery 
of its annual Pavement Maintenance Project.  Each year, staff sends a Request For 
Proposal (RFP) to consultants for their services.  This year, staff sought proposals from 
local engineering firms for three year’s worth of pavement maintenance design and 
contract administration services.  This approach has been successfully implemented by 
neighboring agencies, as it makes more efficient use of staff time and increases the 
ratio of funds expended on construction.  Flowers has been selected to provide design 
and construction management services for the next three annual Pavement 
Maintenance Projects. 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 
The City is divided into seven pavement maintenance zones (see Attachment).  Staff 
has negotiated a contract with Flowers for design phase services for Zone 4.  This 
design phase includes the evaluation of over 6.1 million square feet of asphalt and 
concrete streets within this zone, as well as other specific streets requiring repair 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Design Services For The Zone 4 Pavement Maintenance Project And 
Acceptance Of Grant Funds 
November 10, 2009 
Page 2 

 

 

outside the zone.  The design will specify repair and maintenance procedures to apply 
to streets and include the preparation of construction contract documents so the work 
can be bid, awarded, and then constructed. 
 
The scope of services from Flowers includes the following:  
 

• Surveying existing pavement condition 
• Marking streets for pavement repair work  
• Preparing specifications for pavement repairs  
• Preparing construction cost estimates for all components of the construction phase, 

including pavement preparation, slurry seal, crack seal, and other alternative repair 
options.   

 
The design for the Project is scheduled to be completed by February 2010, with 
construction work scheduled to commence in spring/summer 2010.   
 
Staff recommends that Council authorize the Public Works Director to execute a 
contract with Flowers in the amount of $65,208 for Project design services.   
 
FUNDING 
 
The Project is funded primarily through Streets Capital funds previously budgeted for 
pavement maintenance.  An additional $347,000 will be funded through the LSTP 
Grant.  LSTP Grant funds are received in advance as lump sum payments, and must be 
spent on transportation system improvement projects.  This year’s LSTP Grant was 
received on July 23, 2009. 
 
The following summarizes all estimated total Project costs: 
 

ESTIMATED TOTAL PROJECT COST 
 
Design (by Contract) $65,208

Design Project Management (by City staff) $40,000

 Subtotal $105,208

Estimated Construction Contract w/Change Order Allowance  $1,634,792

Estimated Construction Management/Inspection (by Contract) $200,000

Estimated Construction Project Management (by City staff) $50,000

Estimated Other Construction Costs (testing, etc.) $10,000

 Subtotal 1,894,792

TOTAL PROJECT COST $2,000,000
 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Design Services For The Zone 4 Pavement Maintenance Project And 
Acceptance Of Grant Funds 
November 10, 2009 
Page 3 

 

 

 
There are sufficient funds in the Streets Capital Program to cover these costs.  Measure 
D funds are a significant funding source for the Streets Capital Program, including the 
design and construction of the Project. 
 
SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT: 
 
The timely maintenance of pavement sustains the road condition and eliminates the 
need for more extensive and costly road reconstruction.  This reduces the use of raw 
materials, pavement oils, and the financial impact on the community. 
 
ATTACHMENT: Pavement Maintenance Zone Map 
 
PREPARED BY: John Ewasiuk, Principal Civil Engineer/TC/mj 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Christine F. Andersen, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator’s Office 
 



C
0
E
U
C,

13

p i

Iin
I III

I



Agenda Item No._____________ 

File Code No.  540.10 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: November 10, 2009 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Water Resources Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Approval Of Purchase Order For Dewatering Equipment At The 

William B. Cater Treatment Plant  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council: 
 
A. Authorize the purchase of a dewatering belt press from Aspen Rentals in the amount 

of $376,000 for use at the William B. Cater Water Treatment Plant (Cater) pursuant 
to section 4.52.070 (L) of the Santa Barbara Municipal Code whereby the City 
Council finds it in the best interest of the City to forego normal bidding processes; 

B. Approve an increase to the existing Purchase Order in the amount of $18,000 to 
allow for one additional month of the rental expenditure with Gold Coast 
Stabilization for a dewatering belt press; and  

C. Approve an increase to the existing Purchase Order in the amount of $68,250 to 
allow the continuation of the rental expenditure for the Rain For Rent mixing tank for 
an additional 30 months. 

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Following the Zaca Fire, increased levels of organic material in the water required the 
addition of significant amounts of powdered-activated carbon and coagulants during the 
water treatment process to meet Federal drinking water regulations.  The addition of the 
carbon and coagulants greatly increased sludge production.   
 
On August, 12, 2008, Council approved $248,375 for a Purchase Order to Gold Coast 
Stabilization for the rental of a dewatering belt press (belt press), and $27,375 for a 
Purchase Order to Rain For Rent for a dewatering mixing tank to be used at Cater.  At that 
time, renting the equipment was considered the most prudent approach, as the 
persistence of the changed water quality was unknown and the rental costs were 
reimbursable by the State.  
 
The water quality has stabilized over the past year, but still requires the addition of carbon 
and coagulants.  Reimbursement from the State for the dewatering equipment will expire 
on December 31, 2009.  Staff has analyzed the costs of purchasing versus renting the belt 
press and mixing tank.  Staff believes the most cost effective approach is to purchase the 



Council Agenda Report 
Approval Of Purchase Order For Dewatering Equipment At The William B. Cater 
Treatment Plant  
November 10, 2009 
Page 2 
 

 

belt press and continue to rent the required mixing tank for a period of 30 months.  This 
should allow sufficient time for the Advanced Treatment Project at Cater to be constructed 
and operational.  A permanent dewatering facility is one of the components of the 
Advanced Treatment Project. 
 
Bidding Process 
Considering the difficulty staff had originally with locating a belt press suitable for use in 
a potable water system and the pending expiration date for renting the dewatering 
equipment at Cater, staff believed it was in the City’s best interest to conduct an 
informal bidding process, soliciting bids from vendors based on price and their ability to 
have a belt press onsite and operational by December 15, 2009.  Because the purchase 
price is greater than $25,000, the purchase of the equipment would be subject to a 
formal bidding process pursuant to the City’s Purchasing Code. The current belt press 
at Cater is owned by Aspen Rentals and is rented through a third-party company called 
Gold Coast Stabilization.  Aspen Rentals submitted an acceptable low bid price of 
$376,000 (tax included) for the sale of the dewatering belt press that is currently in 
operation at Cater.   
 
The existing rental agreement for the belt press will expire on November 15, 2009; 
therefore, staff is requesting a one-month extension of the rental agreement.  This will 
cover the time period from the expiration of the current rental agreement to the final 
purchase of the belt press, which is anticipated to take less than 30 days.  Depending 
on the actual purchase date, the rental amount will be prorated. 
 
Staff solicited bids from two vendors to purchase a mixing tank.  The purchase price from 
Rain For Rent for the mixing tank currently on site at Cater is $78,005, whereas the 
rental cost for the same piece of equipment for the next 30 months would be $68,250, 
including maintenance and support.  The mixing tank required significant maintenance 
during the past year; therefore, staff finds it in the City’s best interest to continue renting 
the mixing tank rather than purchasing it. 
 
Dewatering Belt Press 
Company Comments Purchase 

Price  
Rental Price 
for 30 months 

Aspen Rentals Equipment currently 
in use at Cater 

$376,000 
 

$450,000

Environmental Machine and 
Services 

Unsure of equipment 
delivery by 12/15/09 

$575,000 N/A 

Mechanical Solids Dewatering 
Environmental Services, Inc.  

Unsure of equipment 
delivery by 12/15/09 

$689,000 N/A 

 
 
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Approval Of Purchase Order For Dewatering Equipment At The William B. Cater 
Treatment Plant  
November 10, 2009 
Page 3 
 

 

Mixing Tank 
Company Comments Purchase 

Price 
Rental Price 
for 30 months 

Rain For Rent Equipment currently 
in use at Cater 

$78,005 $68,250

Baker Tanks 
 

Does not sell tanks NA $128,128

 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
There are adequate funds in the 2010 Cater Budget to cover this expense.  On 
October 12, 2009, the Board of Water Commissioners voted 5/0 to recommend that 
Council approve staff’s recommendations. 
 
 
PREPARED BY: Cathy Taylor, Water System Manager/mh 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Christine F. Andersen, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 
 
 



Agenda Item No._____________ 

File Code No.  540.13 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: November 10, 2009 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Water Resources Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Contract For Annual Wastewater Flow Monitoring 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council award and authorize the Public Works Director to execute a contract with 
V&A Engineering (V&A) for $212,000 for a Wastewater Flow Monitoring Project and for 
expenditures up to $21,200 to cover any cost increases that may result from extra 
services. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
During the next four years, the Wastewater Flow Monitoring Program (Program) will 
focus on four areas in the wastewater collection system that have been determined from 
past flow monitoring projects to have high levels of water entering the system during 
rainfall events (infiltration). Water Resources staff proposes that V&A perform flow 
monitoring in each of the four areas over the course of the next four years.  The 
purpose of the Program is to help prioritize City maintenance efforts by honing in on the 
areas of high infiltration.   
 
A Request For Proposals (RFP) was issued for this project and proposals were received 
from three qualified firms.  V&A was selected as the firm most responsive to the RFP 
and submitted the lowest cost proposal in an amount of $212,000. Staff is also 
requesting authorization of an additional $21,200 to cover any unforeseen costs 
associated with this work effort.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Contract For Annual Wastewater Flow Monitoring  
November 10, 2009 
Page 2 

 

 
BUDGET/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
The following summarizes all Project costs: 
 
 

Project Management (by City) $40,000 

Annual Flow Monitoring Program $212,000 

Extra Services $21,200 

Total Project Cost  $273,200 
 
There are adequate funds in the Wastewater Fund Capital Budget to cover the cost of 
this contract. 
 
 
PREPARED BY:    Rebecca Bjork, Water Resources Manager/AS/mh 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Christine F. Andersen, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator’s Office 
 
 
 



Agenda Item No._____________ 

File Code No.  640.08 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: November 10, 2009 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT:  Approval Of Map And Execution Of Agreements For 412 And 

414 Anacapa Street 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council approve and authorize the City Administrator to execute and record Parcel 
Map Number 20,785 for a subdivision at 412 and 414 Anacapa Street, (finding the 
Parcel Map in conformance with the State Subdivision Map Act, the City's Subdivision 
Ordinance, and the Tentative Subdivision Map), and other standard agreements relating 
to the approved subdivision. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
A Tentative Map for a subdivision located at 412 and 414 Anacapa Street (Attachment 
1) was conditionally approved on April 2, 2009, by adoption of the Planning Commission 
(PC) Conditions of Approval, Resolution Number 009-09 (Attachment 2).  The project 
includes subdividing an existing 13,500 square foot vacant parcel into three new lots, 
and construction of a new three-story mixed-use building on each new parcel.    
 
In accordance with the PC approval, the Owner (Attachment 3) has signed and 
submitted the Parcel Map and the subject Agreements to the City, tracked under Public 
Works Permit Number PBW2009-01049.  It is necessary that Council approve the 
Parcel Map since it conforms to all the requirements of the Subdivision Map Act and the 
Municipal Code applicable at the time of the approval of the Tentative Map (Municipal 
Code, Chapter 27.09.060). 
 
Staff recommends that Council authorize the City Administrator to execute the subject 
Agreement Relating to Subdivision Map Conditions Imposed on Real Property.  
 
The Agreement Assigning Water Extraction Rights does not require Council approval, 
and will be signed and recorded by the Public Works Director in accordance with City 
Council Resolution Number 02-131. 
 
 
THE PARCEL MAP IS AVAILABLE FOR REVIEW IN THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE. 



Council Agenda Report 
Approval Of Map And Execution Of Agreements For 412 And 414 Anacapa Street 
November 10, 2009 
Page 2 
 
 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 1. Vicinity Map 

2. Conditions required to be recorded concurrent with Parcel Map 
Number 20,785 by the Planning Commission Conditions of 
Approval, PC Resolution Number 009-09. 

3. List of Owner(s)/Trustees 
 
PREPARED BY: Mark Wilde, Supervising Civil Engineer/VJ/kts 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Christine F. Andersen, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



ATTACHMENT 1

Not to Scale

Vicinity Map
412-414 Anacapa Street 

Anacapa Street

Eas
t H

ale
y S

tre
et

Santa Barbara Street

Eas
t G

uti
err

ez
 S

tre
et

SITE



 

Page 1  

ATTACHMENT 2 

CONDITIONS REQUIRED TO BE RECORDED CONCURRENT WITH PARCEL MAP 
NUMBER 20,785 BY THE PLANNING COMISSION CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL, 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 009-09 
 

412 - 414 Anacapa Street 
 

Said approval is subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. Approved Development.  The development of the Real Property approved by 
the Planning Commission on April 2, 2009 is limited to 3 lots and a total of 4,074 
square feet of commercial development and the improvements shown on the 
Tentative Subdivision Map signed by the chairman of the Planning Commission 
on said date and on file at the City of Santa Barbara.  Lot 1 includes 1,780 net 
square feet of commercial area and a 1,930 net square foot residential unit on a 
4,760 square foot lot with one covered and three uncovered parking spaces.  Lot 
2 includes 1,756 net square feet of commercial area and a 1,888 square foot 
residential unit on a 5,070 square foot lot with parking provided in one covered 
and three uncovered parking spaces.  Lot 3 includes 538 net square feet of 
commercial area and a 3,295 net square foot residential unit on a 3,670 square 
foot lot with parking provided in two covered parking spaces and two uncovered.   

2. Uninterrupted Water Flow.  The Owner shall provide for the uninterrupted flow 
of water onto the Real Property including, but not limited to, swales, natural 
watercourses, conduits and any access road, as appropriate. 

3. Recreational Vehicle Storage Prohibition.  No recreational vehicles, boats, or 
trailers shall be stored on the Real Property.   

4. Landscape Plan Compliance.  The Owner shall comply with the Landscape 
Plan approved by the Architectural Board of Review (ABR).  Such plan shall not 
be modified unless prior written approval is obtained from the ABR.  The 
landscaping on the Real Property shall be provided and maintained in 
accordance with said landscape plan.  If said landscaping is removed for any 
reason without approval by the ABR, the owner is responsible for its immediate 
replacement. 

5. Storm Water Pollution Control and Drainage Systems Maintenance.  Owner 
shall maintain the drainage system and storm water pollution control devices 
intended to intercept siltation and other potential pollutants (including, but not 
limited to, hydrocarbons, fecal bacteria, herbicides, fertilizers, etc. ) in a 
functioning state (and in accordance with the Operations and Maintenance 
Procedure Plan prepared in accordance with the Storm Water Management Plan 
BMP Guidance Manual).  Should any of the project’s surface or subsurface 
drainage structures or storm water pollution control methods fail to capture, 
infiltrate, and/or treat water, or result in increased erosion, the Owner shall be 
responsible for any necessary repairs to the system and restoration of the eroded 
area.  Should repairs or restoration become necessary, prior to the 
commencement of such repair or restoration work, the applicant shall submit a 
repair and restoration plan to the Community Development Director to determine 
if an amendment or a new Building Permit is required to authorize such work.  
The Owner is responsible for the adequacy of any project-related drainage 
facilities and for the continued maintenance thereof in a manner that will preclude 



Page 2 

any hazard to life, health, or damage to the Real Property or any adjoining 
property. 

6. Required Private Covenants.  The Owners shall record in the official records of 
Santa Barbara County either private covenants, a reciprocal easement 
agreement, or a similar agreement which, among other things, shall provide for 
all of the following: 
a. Common Area Maintenance.  An express method for the appropriate 

and regular maintenance of the common areas, common access ways, 
common utilities and other similar shared or common facilities or 
improvements of the development, which methodology shall also provide 
for an appropriate cost-sharing of such regular maintenance among the 
various owners of the parcels. 

b.  Garages Available for Parking.  A covenant that includes a requirement 
that all garages be kept open and available for the parking of vehicles 
owned by the residents of the property in the manner for which the 
garages were designed and permitted. 

c.  Landscape Maintenance.  A covenant that provides that the landscaping 
shown on the approved Landscaping Plan shall be maintained and 
preserved at all times in accordance with the Plan.  

d. Trash and Recycling.  Trash holding areas shall include recycling 
containers with at least equal capacity as the trash containers, and 
trash/recycling areas shall be easily accessed by the consumer and the 
trash hauler.  Green waste shall either have containers adequate for the 
landscaping or be hauled off site by the landscaping maintenance 
company.  If no green waste containers are provided for common interest 
developments, include an item in the CC&Rs stating that the green waste 
will be hauled off site. 

e. Gates.  Any gates that have the potential to block access to any 
designated commercial space shall be locked in the open position during 
business hours. 

f.   Covenant Enforcement.  A covenant that permits each owner to 
contractually enforce the terms of the private covenants, reciprocal 
easement agreement, or similar agreement required by this condition.  

g. C-M Zone.  CC&R’s for each lot shall include an advisory statement that 
future development of adjacent parcels could consist of any uses  that are 
permitted as defined in SBMC§28.69 C-M Commercial Manufacturing 
Zone. 

7. Use Limitations.  Due to potential parking impacts, the residential floor area 
shall not be converted to commercial floor area without further environmental 
review.  Prior to initiating a change of use, the Owner shall submit a letter to the 
Community Development Director detailing the proposal, and the Director shall 
determine the appropriate review procedure and notify the Applicant. 

8. Residential Permit Parking Program.  Residents shall not participate in the 
Residential Permit Parking Program. 



ATTACHMENT 3 
 

LIST OF OWNERS for 
412 - 414 Anacapa Street 

 
 

AnaBilt, LLC 
 

Robin Donaldson, Manager 
 

Eryn M. Donaldson 
 

Russell Shubin 



Agenda Item No._____________ 

File Code No.  640.08 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE:  November 10, 2009 
 
TO:    Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM:   Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT:  Approval Of Map And Execution Of Agreements For 1829 State 

Street And 11 West Pedregosa Street 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council approve and authorize the City Administrator to execute and record Final 
Map Number 20,769 for a subdivision at 1829 State Street and 11 West Pedregosa 
Street (finding the Final Map in conformance with the State Subdivision Map Act, the 
City's Subdivision Ordinance, and the Tentative Subdivision Map), and other standard 
agreements relating to the approved subdivision; and authorize the City Engineer to 
record a removal document for the Land Development Agreement when the public 
improvements are complete. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
A Tentative Map for a subdivision located on the southwest corner at 1829 State Street 
and 11 West Pedregosa Street (Attachment 1) was conditionally approved on November 
8, 2007, by adoption of the Planning Commission (PC) Conditions of Approval, 
Resolution Number 044-07 (Attachment 2).  The project involves the development of a 
three-story mixed use building, including 2,539 net square feet (sf) of commercial space 
which will be divided into six commercial and six residential condominium units, ranging 
in size from 1,720 to 2,535 net sf.  Multiple pedestrian entry points are proposed along 
both State and Pedregosa Streets, and vehicular access will be removed from 

Pedregosa Street. 
 
In accordance with PC approval, the Owners (Attachment 3) have signed and submitted 
the Final Map and the subject Agreements to the City, tracked under Public Works 
Permit Number PBW2008-00381.  It is necessary that Council approve the Final Map 
since it conforms to all the requirements of the Subdivision Map Act and the Municipal 
Code applicable at the time of the approval of the Tentative Map (Municipal Code, 
Chapter 27.09.060). 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Approval Of Map And Execution Of Agreements For 1829 State Street And 11 Pedregosa 
Street  
November 10, 2009 
Page 2 
 
 

 

Staff recommends that Council authorize the City Administrator to execute the subject 
Agreement Relating to Subdivision Map Conditions Imposed on Real Property and 
Agreement for Land Development Improvements. 
 
The Agreement Assigning Water Extraction Rights was processed and recorded 
separately on February 13, 2009. 
 
THE FINAL MAP IS AVAILABLE FOR REVIEW IN THE CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 1. Vicinity Map 

2. Conditions required to be recorded concurrent with Final Map 
Number 20,769 by the Planning Commission’s Conditions of 
Approval, Resolution Number 044-07 

3. List of Owners 
 
 
PREPARED BY: Mark Wilde, Supervising Civil Engineer/VJ/kts 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Christine F. Andersen, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office
 
 
 



Attachment 1

Not to Scale

Vicinity Map

1829 State Street and 11 W. Pedregosa Street 

SITE

State Street

W
es

t Is
lay

 S
tre

et

Eas
t Is

lay

Chapala Street

W
es

t P
ed

reg
os

a Stre
et



 

Page 1  

ATTACHMENT 2 
CONDITIONS REQUIRED TO BE RECORDED CONCURRENT WITH FINAL MAP 
NUMBER 20,769 BY THE PLANNING COMMISSION'S CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL, 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 044-07. 
 

1829 State Street and 11 West Pedregosa Street 
 

  Said approval is subject to the following conditions: 
1. Uninterrupted Water Flow. The Owner shall provide for the uninterrupted flow 
of water through the Real Property including, but not limited to, swales, natural 
water courses, conduits and any access road, as appropriate. The Owner is 
responsible for the adequacy of any project-related drainage facilities and for the 
continued maintenance thereof in a manner that will preclude any hazard to life, 
health or damage to the Real Property or any adjoining property.  
 
2. Recreational Vehicle Storage Prohibition. No recreational vehicles, boats or 
trailers shall be stored on the Real Property.  
 
3. Landscape Plan Compliance. The Owner shall comply with the Landscape Plan 
approved by the Historic Landmarks Commission (HLC). Such plan shall not be 
modified unless prior written approval is obtained from the (HLC). The landscaping 
on the Real Property shall be provided and maintained in accordance with said 
landscape plan. 
 
4. Storm Water Pollution Control and Drainage Systems Maintenance. Owner 
shall maintain the drainage system and storm water pollution control devices in a 
functioning state and in accordance with the Operations and Maintenance 
Procedure Plan approved by the Building Official, in consultation with the Parks and 
Recreation Department, Creeks Division. Should any of the project's surface or 
subsurface drainage structures or storm water pollution control devices fail to 
capture, infiltrate and/or treat, or result in increased erosion, the Owner shall be 
responsible for any necessary repairs to the system and restoration of the eroded 
area. Should repairs or restoration become necessary prior to the commencement 
of such repair or restoration work, the applicant shall submit a repair and restoration 
plan to the Community Development Director to determine if an amendment or a 
new Building Permit is required to authorize such work. The Owner is responsible 
for the adequacy of any project related drainage facilities and for the continued 
maintenance thereof in manner that will preclude any hazard to life, health or 
damage to the Real Property or any adjoining property. 
 
5. Approved Development. The development of the Real Property approved by 
the Planning Commission on November 8, 2007 is limited to approximately 2,539 
net square of commercial building area that can be subdivided into as many as six 
commercial condominiums and six residential condominiums and the improvements 
shown on the Tentative Subdivision Map and the Development Plan signed by the 
chairman of the Planning Commission on said date and on file at the City of Santa 
Barbara. 
 



Page 2 

 
 
6. Required Private Covenants. The Owners shall record in the official records of 
Santa Barbara County either private covenants, a reciprocal easement agreement, 
or a similar  agreement which, among other things, shall provide for all of the 
following: 

 
a. Common Area Maintenance. An express method for the appropriate and 
regular maintenance of the common areas, common access ways, common 
utilities and other similar shared or common facilities or improvements of the 
development, which methodology shall also provide for an appropriate cost-
sharing of such regular maintenance among the various owners of the 
condominium parcels.  
 
b. Garages Available for Parking. A covenant that includes a requirement 
that all garages be kept open and available for the parking of vehicles owned 
by the residents of the property in the manner for which the garages were 
designed and permitted. 
 
c. Unassigned Parking. All parking spaces other than those designated for 
residential purposes shall remain unassigned and available to all occupants 
and visitors to the site. 
 
d. Landscape Maintenance. A covenant that provides that the landscaping 
shown on the approved Landscaping Plan shall be maintained and 
preserved at all times in accordance with the Plan. 
 
e. Trash and Recycling. Adequate space shall be provided and maintained 
for trash and recycling purposes.  
 
f. Covenant Enforcement. A covenant that permits each owner to 
contractually enforce the terms of the private covenants, reciprocal easement 
agreement, or similar agreement required by this condition.  
 

7. Lighting. Exterior lighting, where provided, shall be consistent with the City's 
Lighting Ordinance and most currently adopted Energy Code. No floodlights shall 
be allowed. Exterior lighting shall be shielded and directed toward the ground. 
 
8. Street Tree Protection. The street trees within the City's right-of-way shall be 
preserved and protected. 

 



ATTACHMENT 3 
 

 
 

LIST OF OWNERS 
1829 State Street and 11 West Pedregosa Street 

 
Emmet J. Hawkes 

 
Sally Hawkes 



Agenda Item No._____________ 

File Code No.  640.08 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: November 10, 2009 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Engineering Division, Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT:  Approval Of Map And Execution Of Agreements For 618 San 

Pascual Street 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
That Council approve and authorize the City Administrator to execute and record Parcel 
Map Number 20,782 for a subdivision at 618 San Pascual Street (finding the Parcel 
Map in conformance with the State Subdivision Map Act, the City's Subdivision 
Ordinance, and the Tentative Subdivision Map), and other standard agreements relating 
to the approved subdivision. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
A Tentative Map for a subdivision located at 618 San Pascual (Attachment 1) was 
conditionally approved on March 11, 2009, by adoption of the Staff Hearing Officer 
(SHO) Conditions of Approval, Resolution Number 020-09 (Attachment 2).  The 
proposed project involves construction of four new attached residential condominium 
units, price restricted to low-income households. 
  
In accordance with the SHO approval, the Owner(s) (Attachment 3) have signed and 
submitted the Parcel Map and the subject Agreements to the City, tracked under Public 
Works Permit Number PBW2009-01309.  It is necessary that Council approve the 
Parcel Map since it conforms to all the requirements of the Subdivision Map Act and the 
Municipal Code applicable at the time of the approval of the Tentative Map (Municipal 
Code, Chapter 27.09.060). 
 
Staff recommends that Council authorize the City Administrator to execute the subject 
Agreement Relating to Subdivision Map Conditions Imposed on Real Property. 
 
The Agreement Assigning Water Extraction Rights does not require Council approval 
and will be signed by the Public Works Director in accordance with City Council 
Resolution Number 02-131. 
 
 
 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Approval Of Map And Execution Of Agreements For 618 San Pascual Street 
November 10, 2009 
Page 2 
 

 

THE PARCEL MAP IS AVAILABLE FOR REVIEW IN THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 1. Vicinity Map 

2. Conditions required to be recorded concurrent with Parcel Map 
Number 20,782 by the Staff Hearing Officer Conditions of 
Approval, Resolution Number 020-09. 

3. List of Owners/Trustees 
 
PREPARED BY: Mark Wilde, Supervising Civil Engineer/VJ/kts 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Christine F. Andersen, Public Works Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



ATTACHMENT 1

Not to Scale

Vicinity Map
618 San Pascual

W
es

t C
ota

Stre
et

Wentworth Avenue

W
es

t O
rte

ga
 S

tre
et

San Pascual Street

SITE



 

Page 1  

ATTACHMENT 2 

CONDITIONS REQUIRED TO BE RECORDED CONCURRENT WITH PARCEL MAP 
NUMBER 20,782 BY THE STAFF HEARING OFFICER CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL, 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 020-09 
 

618 San Pascual Street 
 

Said approval is subject to the following conditions: 
 
 Recorded Conditions Agreement.  Prior to the issuance of any Public Works permit or 

Building permit for the project on the Real Property, the Owner shall execute an Agreement 
Relating to Subdivision Map Conditions Imposed on Real Property, which shall be reviewed 
as to form and content by the City Attorney, Community Development Director and Public 
Works Director, recorded in the Office of the County Recorder, and shall include the 
following:   

1. Approved Development.  The development of the Real Property approved by the 
Staff Hearing Officer on March 11, 2009 is limited to construction of four new attached 
residential condominium units price restricted to Low-Income Households, consisting 
of two 981 sf two-bedroom units, one 1,127 sf two-bedroom unit, and one 789 sf one-
bedroom unit, four attached single-car garage between 212 and 242 sf; grading 
totaling 1,830 cu yds, with 1,821 cu yds of cut and 9 cu yds of fill; and the 
improvements shown on the Tentative Subdivision Map signed by the Staff Hearing 
Officer on said date and on file at the City of Santa Barbara.   

2. Uninterrupted Water Flow.  The Owner shall provide for the uninterrupted flow of 
water onto the Real Property including, but not limited to, swales, natural 
watercourses, conduits and any access road, as appropriate. 

3. Recreational Vehicle Storage Prohibition.  No recreational vehicles, boats, or 
trailers shall be stored on the Real Property.   

4. Landscape Plan Compliance.  The Owner shall comply with the Landscape Plan 
approved by the Architectural Board of Review (ABR).  Such plan shall not be modified 
unless prior written approval is obtained from ABR.  The landscaping on the Real 
Property shall be provided and maintained in accordance with said landscape plan.  If 
said landscaping is removed for any reason without approval by the ABR, the owner is 
responsible for its immediate replacement.   

5. Storm Water Pollution Control and Drainage Systems Maintenance.  Owner shall 
maintain the drainage system and storm water pollution control devices intended to 
intercept siltation and other potential pollutants (including, but not limited to, 
hydrocarbons, fecal bacteria, herbicides, fertilizers, etc.) in a functioning state (and in 
accordance with the Operations and Maintenance Procedure Plan prepared in 
accordance with the Storm Water Management Plan BMP Guidance Manual).  Should 
any of the project’s surface or subsurface drainage structures or storm water pollution 
control methods fail to capture, infiltrate, and/or treat water, or result in increased 
erosion, the Owner shall be responsible for any necessary repairs to the system and 
restoration of the eroded area.  Should repairs or restoration become necessary, prior 
to the commencement of such repair or restoration work, the applicant shall submit a 
repair and restoration plan to the Community Development Director to determine if an 
amendment or a new Building Permit is required to authorize such work.  The Owner is 
responsible for the adequacy of any project-related drainage facilities and for the 
continued maintenance thereof in a manner that will preclude any hazard to life, 
health, or damage to the Real Property or any adjoining property. 



Page 2  

6. Ownership Unit Affordability Restrictions.  The dwelling units designated as Unit 1, 
2, 3 and 4 on the Tentative Subdivision Map shall be designated as Affordable Low-
Income Units and sold only to households who, at the time of their purchase, qualify as 
Low-Income Households as defined in the City’s Affordable Housing Policies and 
Procedures.   

 The Affordable Units shall be sold and occupied in conformance with City Agreement 
No. 22463B and required replacement covenants.  The resale prices of the Affordable 
Units shall be controlled by means of replacement covenants executed by the Owners 
and the City to assure continued affordability for at least forty-five (45) years from the 
initial sale of each affordable unit.  No affordable unit may be rented prior to its initial 
sale.   

7. Required Private Covenants.  The Owners shall record in the official records of 
Santa Barbara County either private covenants, a reciprocal easement agreement, or 
a similar agreement which, among other things, shall provide for all of the following: 
a. Vehicle Registration Restriction.  A covenant that restricts each unit 

household to ownership of one vehicle and requires yearly monitoring by Habitat 
for Humanity of Southern Santa Barbara County to ensure no more than one 
vehicle is registered at each address.  Habitat for Humanity of Southern Santa 
Barbara County shall maintain records of vehicle ownership and produce those 
records to the City upon request within two working days. 

b. Garages Available for Parking.  A covenant that includes a requirement that 
all garages be kept open and available for the parking of vehicles owned by the 
residents of the property in the manner for which the garages were designed 
and permitted. 

c. Common Area Maintenance.  An express method for the appropriate and 
regular maintenance of the common areas, common access ways, common 
utilities and other similar shared or common facilities or improvements of the 
development, which methodology shall also provide for an appropriate cost-
sharing of such regular maintenance among the various owners of the 
condominium units. 

d. Landscape Maintenance.  A covenant that provides that the landscaping 
shown on the approved Landscaping Plan shall be maintained and preserved at 
all times in accordance with the Plan.  

e. Trash and Recycling.  Trash holding areas shall include recycling containers 
with at least equal capacity as the trash containers, and trash/recycling areas 
shall be easily accessed by the consumer and the trash hauler.  Green waste 
shall either have containers adequate for the landscaping or be hauled off site 
by the landscaping maintenance company.  If no green waste containers are 
provided for common interest developments, include an item in the CC&Rs 
stating that the green waste will be hauled off site. 

f. Covenant Enforcement.  A covenant that permits each owner to contractually 
enforce the terms of the private covenants, reciprocal easement agreement, or 
similar agreement required by this condition.  

g. Bicycle Parking.  A minimum of four bicycle parking spaces shall be provided 
on site in a lockable and covered location.  

8. Residential Permit Parking Program Restriction.  Residents shall not participate in 
the Residential Permit Parking Program. 

9. Notice to Property Owner.  The City has identified 45 dBa Ldn as the maximum 
acceptable indoor noise exposure level for multiple family residences.  To achieve 
interior noise levels below 45 dB Ldn for the projected 2025 noise environment, 
exterior windows must be closed. 



ATTACHMENT 3 
 

 
 

LIST OF OWNERS 
Habitat for Humanity 

 
 

618 San Pascual 
 

Joyce McCullough, Executive Director 
 
 

Stephen Baker, President of the Board 



Agenda Item No._____________ 

File Code No.  230.05 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 
 
 

 
AGENDA DATE:  November 10, 2009 
 
TO:    Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM:   Administration Division, Finance Department 
 
SUBJECT:  Fiscal Year 2010 Balancing And Adjustments 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
 
A. Approve the adjustments to budgeted revenues and expenditures for Fiscal Year 

2010 as detailed in the Summary of Recommended Budget Adjustments to 
address the projected revenue shortfall in the General Fund; and 

B. Adopt, by reading of title only, A Resolution of the Council of the City of Santa 
Barbara Amending Resolution No. 09-043, Establishing Certain City Fees, 
Including Water and Wastewater Rates, to Authorize Adjustments to Parks and 
Recreation Fees and Adjust the Fee for Reserving Library Materials. 

 
DISCUSSION:   
 
On June 23, 2009, Council approved the Fiscal Year 2010 budget that included budget 
cuts and revenue enhancements to close a projected $10.5 million deficit caused by rising 
costs and unprecedented declines in revenues.  Since budget adoption in June, revenues 
further deteriorated beyond the levels assumed in the fiscal year 2010 adopted budget. As 
a result, staff now projects a shortfall in revenues of approximately $2.9 million by the end 
of Fiscal Year 2010.  In addition, the City did not receive a federal public safety grant 
totaling $451,420 in connection with the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act to fund 
four police officers.  
 
On September 3, 2009, staff presented to Council the current revenue outlook and 
options for addressing the projected $2.9 million shortfall in revenues for Fiscal Year 2010.  
This recommended approach to address the revenue shortfalls is shown in the 
Attachment.   
 
The projected revenue shortfalls for Fiscal Year 2010 and recommended strategy to 
address them are summarized below. 
 
 Projected Revenue Shortfalls 
 
     Sales Taxes                 $ 1,073,842 
     Transient Occupancy Taxes                       675,030 
      Property Taxes                   433,655 
      Utility Users’ Taxes                        325,671 
         Loss of COPs Grant Funding                            451,420 
 
  Total                  $ 2,959,618 



Council Agenda Report 
Fiscal Year 2010 Balancing And Adjustments  
November 10, 2009 
Page 2 

 

 Recommended Strategy 
 
     General Fund Departmental Adjustments    $ 1,565,354 
     Internal Service Fund Rebates                     122,663 
     Shift Surcharge for Utility Under-grounding to General Fund         359,000 
     Workers’ Compensation Premium Rebates               300,000 
     Transfer from Street Sweeping Fund                100,000 
     Use of General Fund Contingency Account           512,601 
 Total                $ 2,959,618 
 
Recommended Adjustments to the FY 2010 Adopted Budget 
The adjustments recommended by staff are based on projections of revenues from data 
through September 2009. The revenue outlook for this year has not materially changed 
since our report to Council on September 3, 2009.  However, staff will continue to 
monitor revenues closely throughout the year. In addition, staff will be back to the 
Finance Committee and City Council on November 17th with our first quarter budget 
review and will provide Council and Committee members at that time with an update on 
revenues. We will also be back to the Committee and Council in February 2010 with a 
mid-year report and updated revenue projections, which will factor in the next sales tax 
data for the quarter ended September 30, 2009 expected in mid-December as well as 
several more months of TOT revenue data.  

Reduce Major General Fund Revenue Estimates 
Since June, major General Fund revenues have continued to decline below the levels 
assumed in the fiscal year 2010 adopted budget, including Sales Tax, Property Tax, 
Transient Occupancy Tax, and Utility Users Tax.  As a result, staff recommends 
adjusting the Fiscal Year 2010 revenue estimates to reflect this additional $2.9 million 
decline. 

Rebates from Certain Internal Service Funds 
Staff recommends a reduction in the charges from the Facilities Maintenance and Fleet 
Maintenance Internal Service Funds to the General Fund by a total of $122,663. These 
two internal service funds have savings from vacant positions to offset the loss of 
revenues from the reduced charges to the General Fund.  The General Fund annually 
pays approximately $9.5 million for information systems, building maintenance, vehicle 
maintenance and replacement, risk management, custodial and communications 
services. Staff is not recommending any reductions in charges from the Information 
Systems or the Self-Insurance internal service funds this year.  

Shift Electric Surcharge for Under-grounding of Utilities to General Fund 
In August 2005, the Public Utilities Commission (PUC) approved the City’s increase to 
the Southern California Edison (SCE) franchise fee, from 1% to 2%.  One-half (50%) of 
the revenues have been dedicated to under-grounding of utility lines.  Since then, the 
portion dedicated to under-grounding has been accounted for in a separate fund.  There 
are no restrictions on the use of these revenues and staff recommends shifting this 
revenue into the General Fund.  



Council Agenda Report 
Fiscal Year 2010 Balancing And Adjustments  
November 10, 2009 
Page 3 

 

Rebate of Workers’ Compensation Program Premiums  
Over the last several years, as a result of an improved safety record and fewer 
employee injuries, workers’ compensation claims have gone down. In addition, the 
actuarially required reserves that are calculated by an independent actuary for 
outstanding claims have been lowered due to the improved loss experience.  As a 
result, premiums paid over the last several years by all City funds into the Self-
Insurance Fund for the workers’ compensation program have exceeded the amounts 
needed for annual claims expenses and required assets to fund outstanding claims.   
As of June 30, 2009, excess payments attributable to the General Fund amount to 
$3.1 million.  On October 27, 2009, the City Council approved transferring $2.2 million 
of these monies to help offset the remaining General Fund Fiscal Year 2009 revenue 
shortfall.  Staff recommends an additional $300,000 of the remaining $900,000 be used 
to help close the current Fiscal Year 2010 General Fund shortfall.  

Transfer of Funds from the Street Sweeping Fund 
The Street Sweeping Fund was created approximately five years ago to fund the 
residential street sweeping program. At that time, Council approved the creation of a 
separate fund and the allocation of parking citation revenues from vehicles parked in the 
marked no-parking areas on sweeping days as the primary funding source of the 
program. These operations could have been accounted for in the General Fund since 
the funds are not restricted.  
During the initial years as the program was expanding to more residential 
neighborhoods, revenues from parking citations exceeded the program costs. As of 
June 30, 2009, the Street Sweeping Fund had approximately $500,000 of funds 
accumulated from revenues exceeding costs since the program’s inception. On 
October 27, 2009, Council approved allocating $200,000 of these funds to the General 
Fund to assist in addressing the outstanding Fiscal Year 2009 revenue shortfall. Staff is 
recommending an additional $100,000 be allocated to the General Fund to help close 
the fiscal year 2010 General Fund shortfall. This will leave a total of approximately 
$200,000 in the Streets Sweeping Fund as an operating reserve of approximately 20% 
of operating costs.  In addition, now that the program is fully implemented, revenues are 
in line with operating costs.  

Use of the General Fund Contingency Account 
The Fiscal Year 2010 Adopted Budget includes $698,302 established as a contingency 
account in light of the uncertain economic environment. Staff recommends using 
$512,601 of these reserves to balance the General Fund, leaving a balance of 
$185,701. 

Department Adjustments 
The departmental adjustments reviewed with Council on September 3, 2009, are shown 
in the attached Summary of Recommended Budget Adjustments.  The adjustments 
include a variety of ongoing measures including reductions for anticipated salary and 
benefit savings, increased fees/revenue opportunities, and cost shifts in the City 
Administrator’s Office, Community Development, Finance, Library, Parks and 
Recreation, Police, and Public Works.   



Council Agenda Report 
Fiscal Year 2010 Balancing And Adjustments  
November 10, 2009 
Page 4 

 

Many of the departmental adjustments involve keeping positions vacant through the 
remainder of the fiscal year to generate cost savings.  While it is important to note that 
no employee layoffs are currently recommended this year, layoffs may be needed to 
address the projected General Fund deficit in Fiscal Year 2011.  
With regard to the $500,000 savings in the Police Department, the budget reduction will 
not affect the number of authorized sworn police officers, which is currently at 140.  The 
savings will be achieved from 7-9 sworn position vacancies from the start of the fiscal 
year through January 2010 when the next academy commences.  Patrol team strength 
is designed to accommodate fluctuations in staffing levels, such as vacancies caused 
by injuries, training needs, and military deployments.  It is not unusual for the Patrol 
Division to have 5-10 officers involved in some form of long-term training at any given 
time. As such, no redeployment of sworn strength is recommended to backfill vacancies 
in patrol.   

Other Recommended Adjustment 

Police – Animal Control 
Staff recommends a $101,868 increase in appropriations in the Police Department’s 
Animal Control Program to cover the cost of the approved Animal Control Supervisor 
position through April 2010.  The fiscal year 2010 Budget incorrectly excluded funding for 
the position. Staff recommends the increase in appropriations to the Police Department be 
funded from the allocation of the General Fund contingency account (i.e., the appropriated 
reserves).  

Amendments to the FY 2010 Schedule of Penalties, Fees, and Service Charges 
The staff recommended adjustments include two amendments to the City’s Fiscal Year 
2010 Schedule of Penalties, Fees, and Service Charges: 
 

Authorizing Adjustments to Parks and Recreation Fees – Historically, the City’s fee 
resolution provided authorization for the City Administrator or the City Administrator’s 
designee to make upward or downward adjustments in fees and charges to 
accommodate fluctuation in program costs and demand and to allow for flexibility in 
providing programs and services.  Due to an oversight it was not included in the fee 
resolution applicable to Fiscal Year 2010.  In the past, this authority excluded golf, 
tennis, and Arts and Craft Show permit fees.  Staff recommends extending the 
authority to include adjustments to golf and tennis fees, while continuing to exclude 
changes to Arts and Crafts Show permit fees.   
 
Fee on Juvenile Materials Holds – The Santa Barbara Public Library is a member of 
the Black Gold Cooperative Library System.  Because every other Black Gold library 
charges for all material holds, including juvenile materials, the automated system 
was programmed to add this fee to all holds placed in the system.  Santa Barbara 
Public Library staff must now manually delete this charge for each juvenile materials 
hold, approximately 26,000 annually.  The recommended amendment to the City’s 
fee schedule will save significant staff time by removing the fee exemption for 
juvenile materials holds. 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Fiscal Year 2010 Balancing And Adjustments  
November 10, 2009 
Page 5 

 

BUDGETARY/FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
 
The recommended budget adjustments, if approved, would avoid the use of General 
Fund reserves through departmental adjustments and transfers from other funds. Those 
funds transferring monies to the General Fund would realize a reduction in accumulated 
funds above amounts required for operations, thus there is no impact to those 
operations.  
 
ATTACHMENT: Summary of Recommended Budget Adjustments 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Robert Samario, Interim Finance Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 



Attachment 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA
Summary of Recommended Budget Adjustments

Fiscal Year 2010

Addition to/
Estimated (Use of)
Revenue Appropriations Reserves

GENERAL FUND

Non-Departmental
Reduce Sales Tax Estimate (1,073,842)$       -$                     (1,073,842)$     
Reduce Transient Occupancy Tax Estimate (675,030)            -                       (675,030)          
Reduce Property Tax Estimate (433,655)            -                       (433,655)          
Reduce Utility Users Tax Estimate (325,671)            -                       (325,671)          
Increase Revenue for Rebate from Facilities Maint. Fund 87,238               -                       87,238             
Increase Revenue for Rebate from Fleet Maint. Fund 35,425               -                       35,425             
Shift of Franchise Fee Surcharge from Utility Undergrounding Fund 359,000             -                       359,000           
Recognize Transfer from Self Insurance Fund Reserves 300,000             -                       300,000           
Recognize Transfer from Street Sweeping Fund Reserves 100,000             -                       100,000           
Use of Contingency Account -                     (512,601)              512,601           
    Sub-Total (1,626,535)         (512,601)              (1,113,934)       

City Administrator's Office
Revenue from Water Fund for Inside Santa Barbara (CityTV) 4,125                 -                       4,125               
Savings - Alloc. 50% of Employee Rel. Mgr. to Solid Waste Fund -                     (40,586)                40,586             
Reduce Hourly Support for Special CityTV Programming -                     (7,000)                  7,000               
Special Projects Manager Funded by CalGRIP Grant -                     (27,737)                27,737             
    Sub-Total 4,125                 (75,323)                79,448             

Community Development Department
Savings from Part-time Planner Assigned to Creeks (6 months) -                     (24,460)                24,460             
Suspension of Board/Commission Stipends -                     (25,350)                25,350             
Salary Savings for Administrative Specialist vacancy -                     (66,674)                66,674             
    Sub-Total -                     (116,484)              116,484           

Finance Department
Anticipated Salary Savings from Asst. Finance Director Vacancy -                     (105,064)              105,064           
Miscellaneous Line-Item Reductions -                     (12,680)                12,680             
    Sub-Total -                     (117,744)              117,744           

Library Department
Anticipated Salary Savings from 3 Vacant Positions -                     (159,677)              159,677           
Fifty-Cent Fee on Juvenile Materials Holds 7,318                 -                       7,318               
    Sub-Total 7,318                 (159,677)              166,995           

Parks and Recreation Department
Anticipated Salary Savings from 4 Vacant/Absent Positions -                     (247,062)              247,062           
Savings from One-Year Delay of Recreation Equipment Purchase -                     (26,700)                26,700             
Line-Item Savings in Business Services/Administration -                     (8,500)                  8,500               
Reduce Hourly Staff for Capital Projects -                     (5,000)                  5,000               
Reduce Hourly Staff in Aquatics -                     (5,000)                  5,000               
Replace Junior Counselor Program 13,000               -                       13,000             
Close Front Desk for Facility and Program Registration Services -                     (60,000)                60,000             
New Revenues/Expenditure Savings for Recreation Programs 22,920               (2,085)                  25,005             
    Sub-Total 35,920               (354,347)              390,267           

Page 1  



Attachment 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA
Summary of Recommended Budget Adjustments

Fiscal Year 2010

Addition to/
Estimated (Use of)
Revenue Appropriations Reserves

Police Department
Shift Costs to General Fund for COPs Grant Not Received -                     451,420               (451,420)          
Anticipated Salary Savings Due to Vacancies -                     (500,000)              500,000           
Salaries & Benefits Costs for Animal Control Supervisor -                     101,868               (101,868)          
    Sub-Total -                     53,288                 (53,288)            

Public Works Department
Anticipated Salary Savings for Vacant Project Engineer II -                     (134,815)              134,815           
Filling Vacant Survey Technician with Hourly Staff -                     (40,984)                40,984             
Reduce Special Projects for Vector Control and Leaking 
Underground Fuel Tanks (LUFT) -                     (120,485)              120,485           
    Sub-Total -                     (296,284)              296,284           

        GENERAL FUND TOTALS (1,579,172)$      (1,579,172)$         -$                

UTILITY UNDERGROUNDING FUND

Shift Franchise Fee Surcharge for Utility Undergrounding to GF (359,000)$         (359,000)$            -$                

POLICE SUPPLEMENTAL LAW ENFORCEMENT FUND

Reduce Revenue for COPs Grant Not Received (451,420)$          -$                     (451,420)          
Shift Costs to General Fund for COPs Grant Not Received -                     (451,420)              451,420           
    Police Supplemental Law Enforcement Fund Total (451,420)$         (451,420)$            -$                

STREET SWEEPING FUND

Recognize Transfers of Street Sweeping Reserves to General Fund -$                  100,000$             (100,000)        

FACILITIES MAINTENANCE FUND

Rebate to General Fund (87,238)$            -$                     (87,238)            
Salary Savings from 2 Vacant Custodial Positions -                     (87,238)                87,238             
    Facilities Maintenance Fund Total (87,238)$           (87,238)$              -$                

FLEET MAINTENANCE FUND

Rebate to General Fund (35,425)$            -$                     (35,425)            
Salary Savings from Service Writer Absence -                     (35,425)                35,425             
   Fleet Maintenance Fund Total (35,425)$           (35,425)$              -$                

SELF INSURANCE FUND

Recognize Transfers of W/C Reserves to General Fund -$                  300,000$             (300,000)        

Page 2  



RESOLUTION NO. _____ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA 
BARBARA AMENDING RESOLUTION NO. 09-043, 
ESTABLISHING CERTAIN CITY FEES, INCLUDING WATER AND 
WASTEWATER RATES, TO AUTHORIZE ADJUSTMENTS TO 
PARKS AND RECREATION FEES AND ADJUST THE FEE FOR 
RESERVING LIBRARY MATERIALS 
 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SANTA BARBARA AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1.  That Resolution No. 09-043, establishing certain City fees for Fiscal Year 
2010, be amended to authorize adjustments to Parks and Recreation fees, as follows: 

Page 60 
 

City of Santa Barbara 
Parks and Recreation Department 

 
FY 2009-2010 

SCHEDULE OF FEES AND CHARGES 
 

The City Administrator or the City Administrator’s designee is authorized to make 
upward or downward adjustments in fees and charges set by this resolution to 
accommodate fluctuation in program costs and demand and to allow for flexibility in 
providing programs and services. This authorization does not apply to Arts and Crafts 
Show permit fees.  
 
Fees for new programs and services established during the course of the fiscal year, if 
not consistent with existing comparable program fees, shall require City Council 
approval. 
 
SECTION 2.  That Resolution No. 09-043, establishing certain City fees for Fiscal Year 
2010, be amended to adjust the fee for reserving library materials, as follows: 

Page 50 
 
A.  Reserved Materials (Holds)        $0.50 

For reserving all library materials, including requesting materials owned by 
member libraries of the Black Gold Cooperative Library Systems., except for 
children’s materials which are reserved free of charge. 

 
SECTION 3.  All changes listed above shall be effective upon adoption unless otherwise 
noted above. 
 
SECTION 4.  All other provisions of Council Resolution No. 09-043 not inconsistent with 
this amendment shall remain unchanged. 



Agenda Item No._____________ 

File Code No.  640.07 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: November 10, 2009 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Planning Division, Community Development Department 
 
SUBJECT: Appeal Of Planning Commission Decision For 415 Alan Road 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
That Council deny the appeal of Steven Amerikaner, agent for Mr. and Mrs. Andrew 
Seybold, and uphold the Planning Commission decision to deny the initiation of the 
Zone Change, General Plan Amendment and Local Coastal Program Amendment at 
415 Alan Road.  
 
DISCUSSION: 
Project Description 
The proposed project consists of a subdivision of 415 Alan Road into two lots, a lot area 
modification to allow less than the required lot area for proposed Parcel A, a Zone 
Change, General Plan Amendment and Local Coastal Program Amendment for 
proposed Parcel B and a Coastal Development Permit.  Initiation and approval of the 
Zone Change, General Plan Amendment and Local Coastal Program Amendment is 
required before action can be taken on the subdivision application. The Zoning 
designation for proposed parcel B would change from A-1/SD-3 (One-Family 
Residence/Coastal Overlay Zone) to E-3/SD-3 (One-Family Residence/Coastal Overlay 
Zone) so that the new smaller lot would become conforming to lot area.  The General 
Plan Amendment would result in a change from Residential, one unit per acre to five 
units per acre so that the new smaller lot would become conforming to density.  
 
 Existing Proposed Parcel A Proposed Parcel B 
Zone District A-1/ SD-3 A-1/ SD-3 E-3/ SD-3 (Rezone) 

General Plan 
Designation 

Residential, one unit per 
acre 

Residential, one unit per 
acre 

Residential, five units per 
acre (8,712 sq. ft. per unit) 
(General Plan Amendment) 

Slope 15.6% 14.40% 19.90% 
Minimum Lot 
area required 65,340 sq. ft.  (1.5 acres) 65,340 sq. ft.  (1.5 acres) 11,250 sq. ft. (0.26 acres) 

Lot area 59,657 sq. ft. (1.37 acres) 46,948 sq. ft. (1.08 acres) 12,709 sq. ft. (0.29 acres)  

Zoning  Nonconforming to Lot 
Area 

Nonconforming to Lot 
Area Conforming to Lot Area 

General Plan  Conforming to Density Conforming to Density Conforming to Density 
 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of Planning Commission Decision For 415 Alan Road 
November 10, 2009 
Page 2 

 

Project Location 
The property at 415 Alan Road is located in the Campanil neighborhood of the City, 
which is bordered on the north and east by Arroyo Burro Creek, on the south by the 
ocean and on the west by Hope Ranch.  Most of this area consists of large parcels, 
similar to the size of the project site or larger, containing single-family dwellings.  An 
exception to this is the Braemar Tract, a small-lot development that was subdivided 
prior to annexation to the City. This tract of approximately 120 parcels, on relatively 
steep topography, is described in the City’s General Plan Land Use Element as 
presenting “a vivid picture of improper subdivision techniques.”  The density in this 
portion of the neighborhood is approximately four times greater than the other areas.  
The Land Use Element further states that other areas in the City have been rezoned to 
lower densities in order to prevent this sort of development.  
 
When the Braemar Tract was annexed to the City in 1956, it was given an E-3, One-
Family Residence zone designation, which requires a 7,500 square foot minimum lot 
size (or more if average slope is 10% or more).  Many parcels in the Braemar Tract are 
non-conforming (smaller) than the lot area requirement for the E-3 zone.  The rest of the 
neighborhood has an A-1, One-Family Residence zone designation, which requires a 
one-acre minimum lot size (or more if average slope is 10% or more).  A number of 
these parcels, although larger, are also non-conforming to the lot area requirement for 
the A-1 zone.  The General Plan designation for the entire neighborhood is Residential, 
one dwelling unit per acre.  The project site and the majority of the parcels in the 
neighborhood, with the exception of the Braemar Tract, conform to this designation.   
 
Background  
As described in Attachment 2, the applicant submitted similar proposals in the past.  
Staff and the Planning Commission have consistently not supported proposals that 
involve the creation of a new lot in this neighborhood which is identified in the Land Use 
Element as already too dense, a Zone Change and General Plan Amendment for one 
lot to facilitate the creation of one new lot, or a lot split that results in a proposed lot 
becoming more nonconforming to lot area.   
 
Planning Commission Action 
On June 11, 2009, the Planning Commission concurred with the Staff recommendation 
and voted 3-2-2 to deny the request to initiate the Zone Change, General Plan 
Amendment and Local Coastal Plan Amendment (3 in favor, 2 against, 2 absent). (See 
Attachment 3 – Planning Commission Minutes and Resolution.)   
 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of Planning Commission Decision For 415 Alan Road 
November 10, 2009 
Page 3 

 

Appeal 
After the Planning Commission denial of the initiation requests, Steven Amerikaner, on 
behalf of the applicant, filed an appeal (see Attachment 1 – Appeal Letter). The appeal 
letter requests that the Council approve the initiation requests, as well as direct staff to 
investigate the possibility of initiating a General Plan Amendment for the entire Braemar 
Tract, for the following reasons:  1) The proposed amendments would facilitate better 
use of an odd-shaped lot and more efficient use of scarce vacant land in the City; 
2) Santa Barbara needs housing and this proposal will create an additional modest-
sized residential unit; 3) The proposal takes advantage of an infill housing opportunity 
while not changing the character of the neighborhood; 4) The proposed General Plan 
Amendment corrects a discrepancy between the land use designation and zoning for 
the Braemar Tract that has lingered for too long; and 5) The proposal is consistent with 
the principles of Plan Santa Barbara.  
 
For the reasons presented previously, Staff is not in support of the proposal.  The 
General Plan Land Use Element includes both discussion and land use designations. 
Although the applicant suggests that the map amendments to the designations are 
appropriate, staff believes if such changes were pursued, text changes would be 
necessary as well.  
 
The area zoned E-3 does have smaller lot sizes and this designation allows appropriate 
improvements to the residences. The area zoned A-1, including this property, is 
characterized with larger lots, many with an acre or more, and do comply with the 
General Plan designation.  No changes to this neighborhood are proposed with PlanSB.  
In addition, the policy direction for infill housing opportunities is intended for areas of the 
City where higher densities are allowed, not hillside areas of single-family homes.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends that Council deny the appeal and uphold the Planning Commission 
decision to deny the initiation of a Zone Change, General Plan Amendment and Local 
Coastal Program Amendment proposed at 415 Alan Road. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 1.  Appeal letter dated June 18, 2009 

2. Planning Commission Staff Report, June 11, 2009 
3. Planning Commission Minutes and Resolution, 

June 11, 2009 
 

PREPARED BY: Kathleen Kennedy, Associate Planner 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Paul Casey, Community Development Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 



ATTACHMENT 1











ATTACHMENT 2















O
W

N
E

R
AN

D
R

E
W

 S
E

YB
O

LD

AP
N

04
7-

09
1-

02
4

G
E

N
E

R
AL

 P
LA

N
 D

E
S

IG
N

AT
IO

N
R

E
S

ID
E

N
TI

AL
  (

1 
U

N
IT

 P
E

R
 A

C
R

E
)

ZO
N

E
 D

IS
TR

IC
T

A-
1/

S
-D

-3
M

IN
IM

U
M

 L
O

T 
AR

E
A 

43
,5

60
 S

.F
. (

1 
AC

R
E

)
E

XI
S

TI
N

G
 L

O
T 

AR
E

A
59

,6
57

 S
.F

. (
1.

37
 A

C
.)

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 C
O

N
D

IT
IO

N
S

 4
15

 A
LA

N
 R

O
A

D

EXHIBIT B



P
AR

C
E

L 
A

P
AR

C
E

L 
B

O
W

N
E

R
AN

D
R

E
W

 S
E

YB
O

LD
AN

D
R

E
W

 S
E

YB
O

LD
P

R
O

P
O

S
E

D
 G

E
N

E
R

AL
 

P
LA

N
 D

E
S

IG
N

AT
IO

N
R

E
S

ID
E

N
TI

AL
  (

1 
U

N
IT

 P
E

R
 

AC
R

E
)

R
E

S
ID

E
N

TI
AL

  (
5 

U
N

IT
S

 P
E

R
 

AC
R

E
)

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 Z
O

N
E

 
D

IS
TR

IC
T

A-
1/

S
-D

-3
E

-3
/S

-D
-3

M
IN

IM
U

M
 L

O
T 

AR
E

A 
43

,5
60

 S
.F

. (
1 

AC
R

E
)

7,
50

0 
S

.F
. (

0.
17

 A
C

R
E

)
AV

E
R

AG
E

 S
LO

P
E

14
.4

0%
19

.9
0%

M
IN

IM
U

M
 L

O
T 

AR
E

A 
W

IT
H

 
S

LO
P

E
 D

E
N

S
IT

Y 
FA

C
TO

R
65

,4
30

 S
.F

. (
1.

5 
AC

R
E

S
)

11
,2

50
 (0

.2
6 

AC
R

E
)

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 L
O

T 
AR

E
A

46
,9

48
 S

.F
. (

1.
08

 A
C

.) 
 

12
,7

09
 S

.F
. (

0.
29

 A
C

.)

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 C
O

N
D

IT
IO

N
S

 F
O

R
 4

15
 A

L
A

N
 R

O
A

D
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

ID
E

R
A

TI
O

N
 O

F
 T

H
E

 
R

E
ZO

N
E

 A
N

D
 G

E
N

E
R

A
L

 P
LA

N
 A

M
E

N
D

M
E

N
T



P
AR

C
E

L 
A

P
AR

C
E

L 
B

O
W

N
E

R
AN

D
R

E
W

 S
E

YB
O

LD
AN

D
R

E
W

 S
E

YB
O

LD
P

R
O

P
O

S
E

D
 G

E
N

E
R

AL
 

P
LA

N
 D

E
S

IG
N

AT
IO

N
R

E
S

ID
E

N
TI

AL
  (

1 
U

N
IT

 P
E

R
 

AC
R

E
)

R
E

S
ID

E
N

TI
AL

  (
5 

U
N

IT
S

 P
E

R
 

AC
R

E
)

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 Z
O

N
E

 
D

IS
TR

IC
T

A-
1/

S
-D

-3
E

-3
/S

-D
-3

M
IN

IM
U

M
 L

O
T 

AR
E

A 
43

,5
60

 S
.F

. (
1 

AC
R

E
)

7,
50

0 
S

.F
. (

0.
17

 A
C

R
E

)
AV

E
R

AG
E

 S
LO

P
E

14
.4

0%
19

.9
0%

M
IN

IM
U

M
 L

O
T 

AR
E

A 
W

IT
H

 
S

LO
P

E
 D

E
N

S
IT

Y 
FA

C
TO

R
65

,4
30

 S
.F

. (
1.

5 
AC

R
E

S
)

11
,2

50
 (0

.2
6 

AC
R

E
)

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 L
O

T 
AR

E
A

46
,9

48
 S

.F
. (

1.
08

 A
C

.) 
 

12
,7

09
 S

.F
. (

0.
29

 A
C

.)

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 C
O

N
D

IT
IO

N
S

 F
O

R
 4

15
 A

LA
N

 R
O

A
D

 F
O

R
 C

O
N

S
ID

E
R

A
TI

O
N

 O
F 

TH
E

 
R

E
ZO

N
E

 A
N

D
 G

E
N

E
R

A
L 

P
LA

N
 A

M
E

N
D

M
E

N
T







ATTACHMENT 3











Agenda Item No.  ________ 
File Code No. 140.05  

 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: November 10, 2009 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: City Clerk’s Office, Administrative Services Department 
 
SUBJECT: Interviews For City Advisory Groups 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  That Council: 
 
A. Hold interviews of applicants to various City Advisory Groups; and 
B. Continue interviews of applicants to November 17, 2009, at 6:00 p.m. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Interviews of applicants for various positions on City Advisory Groups are to be held on 
November 10, 2009, at 4:00 p.m.  Applicants will also have the option to be interviewed on 
November 17, 2009, at 6:00 p.m. and November 24, 2009, at 4:00 p.m.   
 
Applicants to the Franklin Center, Lower Westside Center and Westside Center Advisory 
Committees, and the Downtown Neighborhood representative position on the Community 
Development and Human Services Committee will have the option to be interviewed by a 
Council Subcommittee, instead of the City Council, on Thursday, November 12, 2009, at 
7:00 p.m. at the Westside Community Center.   
 
For the current vacancies, 52 individuals submitted 54 applications.  A list of eligible 
applicants and pertinent information about the City Advisory Groups is attached to this 
report. 
 
Applicants have been notified that to be considered for appointment, they must be 
interviewed.  Applicants have been requested to prepare a 2-3 minute verbal presentation 
in response to a set of questions specific to the group for which they are applying. 
 
Appointments are scheduled to take place on December 15, 2009. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT: List of Applicants 
 
PREPARED BY: Cynthia M. Rodriguez, CMC, City Clerk Services Manager 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Marcelo A. López, Administrative Services Director 
 
APPROVED BY: City Administrator's Office 
 



ATTACHMENT 

1 

ACCESS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

• One vacancy. 
• Term expires 12/31/2011. 
• Resident of the City or a full-time employee of an entity doing business within the City who demonstrate an interest, 

experience, and commitment to issues pertaining to disability and access and who represents the Disability 
Community. 

• Appointee may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 

(1st, 2nd, 3rd, 4th) 

 
Notes 

Disability Community (1) 
 

Ken McLellan    

 



2 

AIRPORT COMMISSION 
 

• Two vacancies. 
• Terms expire 12/31/2013 
• Qualified electors of the City or residents of the County of Santa Barbara. 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 

(1st, 2nd, 3rd, 4th) 

 
Notes 

Chris Colbert   Qualified Elector 

Charles Foley   County 

Qualified Electors or 
residents of the 
County (2) 
 William Gilbert   County 



 

3 

ARCHITECTURAL BOARD OF REVIEW 
 

• Three vacancies.  (If Measure E is passed by the voters, membership is reduced from 9 to 7.  Only the Professional 
Qualifications position will be filled; the Landscape Architect category will be included in the Professional Qualifications 
category.) 

• One term expires 12/31/2010; and 
 Two terms expire 12/31/2013. 
• Qualified electors of the City: 
    - One member who is a licensed landscape architect; 
    - One member who possesses professional qualifications in related fields including, but not limited to, building 

design, structural engineering or industrial design; and 
    - One member who is a licensed architect, licensed landscape architect, possess professional qualifications in 

related fields or who represents the public at large. 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 
NOTE: If Measure E is passed by the voters, all applicants will be eligible for appointment; If Measure E is not passed, 

County* residents will not be eligible for appointment.) 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 

(1st, 2nd, 3rd, 4th) 

 
Notes 

Licensed Landscape 
Architects (1) 

Chris Gilliland 12/16/2008 
(1 year) 

 Qualified Elector 

Professional 
Qualifications (1) 

Gary Mosel 12/13/05 
(4 years) 

 Qualified Elector 

Licensed 
Architect/Licensed 
Landscape 
Architect/Professional 
Qualifications/Public 
at Large (1) 

Keith Nolan*   Architect - County 



 

4 

ARTS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
 

• Four vacancies. 
• Terms expire 12/31/2013. 
• One qualified elector of the City; and 
 Three residents of the south coast area of Santa Barbara County. 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 

(1st, 2nd, 3rd, 4th) 

 
Notes 

Qualified Elector (1) Tom Morey 12/13/05 
(4 years) 

 Qualified Elector; currently 
under South Coast Area 
Category 

Roman Baratiak   County 

Phyllis de Picciotto 2/26/02 & 12/13/06 
(7 years, 10 months) 

 County 

South Coast Area (3) 

Suzanne Fairly-
Green 

12/13/05 
(4 years) 

 Qualified Elector 

 



5 

CENTRAL COAST COMMISSION FOR SENIOR CITIZENS 
 

• One vacancy. 
• Term expires 6/30/2011. 
• Resident of the City. 
• Appointee may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 

(1st, 2nd, 3rd, 4th) 

 
Notes 

Resident of the City 
(1) 

None    

 
 

CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSION 
 

• One vacancy. 
• Term expires 12/31/2013. 
• Qualified elector of the City. 
• Appointee may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government and, for 1 year after ceasing to be 

a member, may not be eligible for any salaried office or employment with the City. 
 

 
CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 

(1st, 2nd, 3rd, 4th) 

 
Notes 

Qualified Elector (1) Kathryn McKee 12/13/05 
(4 years)  

  



6 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND HUMAN SERVICES COMMITTEE 
 

• Six vacancies. 
• One term expires 12/31/2010;  
 One term expires 12/31/2011; 
 One term expires 12/31/2012; and 
 Three terms expire 12/31/2013. 
• Residents or employees within the City but need not be qualified electors of the City.  One representative from each: 
    - African American Community         -  Housing Interests 
    - Business Community/Economic Development       -  Human Services Agency 
    - Downtown Neighborhood (Census Tract 9)       -  Senior Community 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 

(1st, 2nd, 3rd, 4th) 

 
Notes 

African American 
Community (1) 

None    

Business 
Community/Economic 
Development (1) 

Laura Knight 7/11/06 
(3 years, 5 months) 

  

Downtown 
Neighborhood (1) 

Maureen Mina   Also qualifies for the 
Human Services Agency 
category 

Housing Interests (1) None    

 
(Cont’d) 



7 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND HUMAN SERVICES COMMITTEE (CONT’D) 
 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 

(1st, 2nd, 3rd, 4th) 

 
Notes 

Julie Jeakle    Human Services 
Agency (1) 

    

Susan Johnson    Senior Community 
(1) 

Christal Leeth    

 



8 

CREEKS ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
 

• One vacancy. 
• Term expires 12/31/2011. 
• Resident of the City or the County with some experience in ocean use, business, environmental issues, and/or provide 

community at large representation. 
• Appointee may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 

CATEGORY 
(Number of Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 

(1st, 2nd, 3rd, 4th) 

 
Notes 

Kathleen “Betsy” 
Weber 

 
 

 Experience in ocean 
use, business, or 
environmental issues, 
and/or represents the 
community at large (1) 

    

 
 



9 

DOWNTOWN PARKING COMMITTEE 
 

• Two vacancies. 
• Terms expire 12/31/2013. 
• Two residents of the City or the County of Santa Barbara. 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 

(1st, 2nd, 3rd, 4th) 

 
Notes 

Randy Rowse 12/7/04 & 12/13/05
(5 years) 

 City Residents of the City 
or the County (2) 

    

 



10 

FIRE AND POLICE COMMISSION 
 

• Two vacancies. 
• One term expires 12/31/2011; and 
 One term expires 12/31/2013. 
• Qualified electors of the City. 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 

(1st, 2nd, 3rd, 4th) 

 
Notes 

Frank Bañales    

Jennifer 
Christensen 

   

Robert Handy    

Patrick Lennon, Jr. 12/13/05 
(4 years) 

  

Daniel McCarter    

Qualified Electors (2) 
 

Bill Medel    

 



11 

FIRE AND POLICE PENSION COMMISSION 
 

• Three vacancies. 
• Two terms expire 12/31/2012; and 
 One term expires 12/31/2013. 
• One qualified elector of the City who is not an active firefighters or an active police officers for the City of Santa 

Barbara;  
 One active or retired firefighter who need not be a resident or qualified elector of the City; and 
 One active or retired police officer who need not be a resident or qualified elector of the City. 
 

 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 

(1st, 2nd, 3rd, 4th) 

 
Notes 

Qualified Elector (1) None   
 

Active/Retired 
Firefighter (1) 

None    

Active/Retired Police 
Officer (1) 

None    

 



12 

FRANKLIN CENTER ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
 

• Three vacancies. 
• One term expires 12/31/2010; and 
 Two terms expire 12/31/2013. 
• Members are not required to be qualified electors of the City:   
  -  One resident or employee within the Franklin Neighborhood (Census Tract Nos. 8.01, 8.02 or 9) 
  -  Two residents of the City who represent the public at large 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 
NOTE:  Applicants for the Resident/Employee in the Franklin Neighborhood category are also eligible for the Public at Large 
category. 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 

(1st, 2nd, 3rd, 4th) 

 
Notes 

Britta Bartels  1) Franklin;  
2) Westside;  
3) Lower Westside 

Census Tract 9 Resident/Employee in the 
Franklin Neighborhood 
(1) 

Chrystal Sturm 12/16/08 
(1 year) 

 Census Tract 8.01 

Sebastian Aldana, Jr. 12/28/07 
(2 years) 

  

Sharon Byrne    

Residents of the City who 
represent the public at 
large (2) 

Laura Garcia    



13 

HARBOR COMMISSION 
 

• One vacancy.  (If Measure D is passed by the voters, increasing membership from 5 to 7, there will be three 
vacancies filled.) 

• Term expires 12/31/2013. 
• Qualified elector of the City. 
• Appointee may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 

(1st, 2nd, 3rd, 4th) 

 
Notes 

Eric Friedman   Current Library Board 
Member; term expires 
12/31/10 

Paul Miller    

Jim Sloan    

Qualified Elector (1) 

Charles E. Watson    
 



14 

HISTORIC LANDMARKS COMMISSION 
 

• Two vacancies. 
• Terms expire 12/31/2013. 
• One appointee must be a qualified elector of the City and one appointee may be a resident of the County of  
 Santa Barbara:  Licensed architects/licensed landscape architects/professional architectural historians or a 

representatives of the public at large. 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 
CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 

(1st, 2nd, 3rd, 4th) 

 
Notes 

Louise Boucher 12/13/05 
(4 years) 

 Public at large – Qualified 
Elector 

William (Bill) LaVoie   Architect - County 

Tom Ochsner   Architect – Qualified 
Elector 

Philip Suding   Landscape Architect – 
Qualified Elector 

Architect, Landscape 
Architect, 
Professional 
Architectural 
Historian or may 
represent the public 
at large (2) 
 

Justin Van Mullem   Professional Architectural 
Historian – Qualified 
Elector 

 



15 

HOUSING AUTHORITY COMMISSION 
 

• One vacancy. 
• Term expires 2/15/2012 (Term effective 2/16/10). 
• Senior tenant (62 years of age or older) who is receiving housing assistance from the Housing Authority 

of the City of Santa Barbara. 
• Appointee may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 
CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 

(1st, 2nd, 3rd, 4th) 

 
Notes 

Senior Tenant (1) 
 

Stanley Eisele 12/18/07 
(2 years) 

  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  



16 

LIBRARY BOARD 
 

• One vacancy. 
• Term expires 12/31/2013. 
• Qualified elector of the City. 
• Appointee may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 

(1st, 2nd, 3rd, 4th) 

 
Notes 

Qualified Elector (1) Christine Forte    

 



17 

LIVING WAGE ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
 

• Four vacancies. 
• One term expires 6/30/2010; 
 Two terms expire 6/30/2012; and 
 One term expires 6/30/2013. 
• One representative from each: 
  -  Local Living Wage Advocacy Organization 
  -  Non-Profit Entity  
  -  Owner or manager of a business operating within the City 
  -  Santa Barbara Chamber of Commerce 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 

CATEGORY 
(Number of Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 

(1st, 2nd, 3rd, 4th) 

 
Notes 

Local Living Wage 
Advocacy Organization 
(1) 

None    

Non-Profit Entity (1) Anna Kokotovic 7/11/06 
(3 years, 5 months) 

  

Owner/Manager of a 
business operating 
within the City (1) 

Gabe Dominocielo   Also eligible for the 
Non-Profit Entity 
category 

Santa Barbara Chamber 
of Commerce (1) 

None    



18 

LOWER WESTSIDE CENTER ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
 

• Two vacancies. 
• Terms expire 12/31/2013. 
• Members are not required to be qualified electors of the City:  Residents of the City who represent the public at large. 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 
CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 

(1st, 2nd, 3rd, 4th) 

 
Notes 

Britta Bartels  1) Franklin;  
2) Westside;  
3) Lower Westside 

 

Paul Contreras 12/16/08 
(1 year) 

  

Residents of the City 
who represent the 
public at large (2) 
 

M. Carmen Lozano 
Ibanez 

   

 



19 

MEASURE P COMMITTEE 
 

• Five vacancies. 
• One term expires 12/31/2011;  
 Two terms expire 12/31/2012; and 
 Two terms expire 12/31/2013. 
• One representative each as follows: 
    - Civil liberties advocate          -  Medical Professional 
    - Criminal defense attorney          -  Resident of the City 
    - Medical Marijuana Patient (Census Tract 9) 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 
CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 

(1st, 2nd, 3rd, 4th) 

 
Notes 

Civil Liberties 
Advocate (1) 

None    

Criminal Defense 
Attorney (1) 

None    

Medical Marijuana 
Patient (1) 

Gary Buffington    

Medical Professional 
(1) 

None    

Resident of the City 
(1) 
 

None    

 
 



20 

PARK AND RECREATION COMMISSION 
 

• One vacancy.  (If Measure C is passed by the voters, increasing membership from 5 to 7, there will be three vacancies 
to be filled.) 

• Term expires 12/31/2013. 
• Qualified elector of the City. 
• Appointee may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 

(1st, 2nd, 3rd, 4th) 

 
Notes 

Chris Casebeer    Qualified Elector (1) 

Lesley Wiscomb    

 
 



21 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

• Two vacancies. 
• Terms expire 12/31/2013. 
• Qualified electors of the City. 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 

(1st, 2nd, 3rd, 4th) 

 
Notes 

Bob Cunningham    

Michael Jordan   Current Creeks Advisory 
Committee member; term 
expires 12/31/2010 

Chava Riley    

Deborah L. Schwartz    

Qualified Electors (2) 
 

Addison Thompson 12/13/05 
(4 years) 

  

 
 



22 

RENTAL HOUSING MEDIATION TASK FORCE 
 

• Four vacancies. 
• One term expires 12/31/2012; and 
 Three terms expire 12/31/2013. 
• Two appointees must be residents of the City: 
    - One homeowner 
    - Two landlords 
    - One tenant 
 * Non-resident members must be owners of residential rental property within the City limits or affiliated with 

organizations concerned with landlord-tenant issues within the City limits. 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 

(1st, 2nd, 3rd, 4th) 

 
Notes 

Homeowner (1) Daniel R. Herlinger  6/28/05  
(4 years, 6 months) 

 City 

None    Landlords (2) 

None    

Tenant (1) Lynn E. Goebel 6/30/09 
(6 months) 

 City 



23 

WESTSIDE CENTER ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
 

• Three vacancies. 
• One term expires 12/31/2010; and 
 Two terms expire 12/31/2013. 
• Members are not required to be qualified electors of the City: 
    - One resident or employee in the Westside Neighborhood (Census Tract Nos. 9, 10, 11.01 and 11.02) 
    - Two residents of the City who represent the public at large 
• Appointees may not hold any full-time paid office or employment in City government. 
 

 
NOTE:  Applicants for the Residents/Employees in the Westside Neighborhood category are also eligible for the Public at Large 
category. 
 
 

CATEGORY 
(Number of 
Vacancies) 

 
APPLICANT Incumbent 

Appt. Dates 
(Years Served) 

Applicant’s 
Preference 

(1st, 2nd, 3rd, 4th) 

 
Notes 

Britta Bartels  1) Franklin;  
2) Westside;  
3) Lower Westside 

Census Tract 9 Resident/Employee in 
the Westside 
Neighborhood (1) 

Michelle V. Nassif   Census Tract 10 

    Residents of the City 
who represent the 
public at large (2) 
 

    

 



Agenda Item No._____________ 

File Code No.  640.07 
 

 

CITY OF SANTA BARBARA 
 
 COUNCIL AGENDA REPORT 

 
 
 

AGENDA DATE: November 10, 2009 
 
TO: Mayor and Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Planning Division, Community Development Department 
 
SUBJECT: Appeal Of Planning Commission Decision For 1900 Lasuen Road,        

El Encanto Hotel   
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
That Council deny the appeal filed by Trevor Martinson and uphold the Planning 
Commission approval of the Modifications and Transfer of Existing Development Rights 
for the project revisions proposed at the El Encanto Hotel.  
  
DISCUSSION: 
 
Background 
On February 12, 2009, the Planning Commission approved a Revised Master Plan for 
the El Encanto Hotel.  Subsequently, an appeal of the Planning Commission approval 
was filed by the neighbors to the north, who were primarily concerned about the 
proposed design for the northwest corner of the property.   

On April 28, 2009, the City Council held the appeal hearing and directed the applicant to 
work with the neighbors to formulate a mutually agreeable redesign of the northwest 
corner prior to returning to the Planning Commission and Council.  After the Council 
hearing, Staff held a series of meetings with the applicant and appellants to resolve the 
appeal issues.  As a result, the applicant made project revisions to the northwest corner 
that were acceptable to both the applicant and the neighbors who filed the appeal.   
 
On September 10, 2009, the Planning Commission voted 7-0 to approve the proposed 
project revisions (see Attachments 2 & 3 – Planning Commission Staff Report, Minutes 
and Resolution).  After the Planning Commission approval of the project revisions, the 
neighbors withdrew their appeal and Trevor Martinson filed an appeal.   
 
Project Description 
The Planning Commission approval is for a revision to the approved El Encanto Hotel 
Revised Master Plan, consisting primarily of changes to the design of the northwest 
corner of the project site.  The revisions consist of three, one-story cottages (#37, 38 & 
39) above an underground, 42-space, valet parking garage.  The operations/back of 
house facilities would be located in the three cottages.  Components of the utility 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of Planning Commission Decision For 1900 Lasuen Road, El Encanto Hotel 
November 10, 2009 
Page 2 

 

distribution facility would be located in cottage 39, in the underground parking garage, 
and underneath cottage 29.  As a result of relocating the parking underground, one 
parking space would be relocated to the Mission Village underground valet parking 
garage located in the northeast corner.  The revision also includes 900 square feet of 
additional underground mechanical space that was not previously proposed in the 
Mission Village underground valet parking garage.  All other components of the Revised 
Master Plan remain as approved on February 12, 2009.  An Addendum to the Mitigated 
Negative Declaration was prepared for the project pursuant to the California 
Environmental Quality Act Guidelines Section 15164.    
 
The discretionary applications approved by the Planning Commission were: 1) a 
Modification to allow the above-ground portion of the underground parking structure to 
encroach into the front setback along Alvarado Place; 2) Modifications to provide less 
than the required distance between buildings in the northwest corner; and 3) Transfer of 
Existing Development Rights of 6,000 square feet (instead of 10,000 square feet as 
previously approved) of non-residential floor area to the project site. 
 
Appeal 
The appeal letter filed by Trevor Martinson states that the approvals are in violation of 
the City Zoning Ordinances, City Parking Standards, the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA), and California State Building Code Title 24 (see Attachment 1 – 
Appeal Letter, Letter to the Planning Commission).  It also references a letter that was 
submitted to the Planning Commission on September 10, 2009. That letter expresses 
concerns regarding the square footage and height of the Main Building, the number of 
stories in Mission Village, Mission Village parking, greenhouse gas emissions and 
bicycle parking.  It also disputes a letter from the Orient Express to neighbors 
concerning the Main Building.  As the appellant states in the letter, he expressed similar 
concerns in a comment letter regarding the draft Mitigated Negative Declaration and at 
the April 28, 2009 Council appeal hearing.    
 
Although the appellant has appealed the September 10, 2009 Planning Commission 
approval, the letters from the appellant do not express concerns regarding the approved 
revisions which include the design of the northwest corner or the additional square 
footage in the Mission Village underground garage.  The concerns expressed regarding 
the Main Building, which received a building permit in 2007, are not relevant to this 
appeal.  The concerns expressed regarding the number of stories in Mission Village and 
the parking structure are not relevant to this appeal, were considered previously as part 
of the February 12, 2009 Revised Master Plan approval and are not a part of the 
revisions considered by the Planning Commission on September 10, 2009.  
Greenhouse gas emissions were analyzed in the Final Mitigated Negative Declaration 
that was adopted by the Planning Commission on February 12, 2009.  No significant 
thresholds or regulatory guidance currently exists for the generation of greenhouse gas 
emissions.  Because the project would not add vehicle trips or stationary sources, long-
term emissions are less than significant; therefore, impacts from greenhouse gas 
emissions were found to be less than significant.  The Addendum to the Mitigated 
Negative Declaration, prepared to address the project revisions, did not require 



Council Agenda Report 
Appeal Of Planning Commission Decision For 1900 Lasuen Road, El Encanto Hotel 
November 10, 2009 
Page 3 

 

additional analysis regarding greenhouse gas emissions.  Bicycle parking was 
addressed as part of the 2004 Master Plan and no changes were proposed as a part of 
the Revised Master Plan.  
 
Conclusion 
As discussed above, the concerns expressed in the appeal letters are not relevant to 
the project revisions approved by the Planning Commission on September 10, 2009 and 
were previously considered by staff, the Planning Commission or the City Council.  If 
the Appellant was concerned about these aspects of the El Encanto Project, it would 
have been more appropriate for him to have appealed the initial February 2009 
Planning Commission decision. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 

It is staff’s position that the Planning Commission appropriately considered all relevant 
issues pertaining to the proposed revisions and made the appropriate findings to 
approve them.  Furthermore, the issues brought up by the appellant are not relevant to 
the approval granted by the Planning Commission.  Therefore, staff recommends that 
the Council deny the appeal and uphold the approval of the project revisions. 
 
NOTE:  The Final Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration is available at 
http://www.santabarbaraca.gov/Resident/Environmental_Documents/1900_Lasuen_Road.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 1.  Appeal letter dated 9/21/09; Letter to PC dated 9/10/09 

2. Planning Commission Staff Report for 9/10/09  
3. Planning Commission Minutes and Resolution, dated 

9/10/09 
 
 
PREPARED BY: Kathleen Kennedy, Associate Planner 
 
SUBMITTED BY: Paul Casey, Community Development Director 
 
APPROVED BY:  City Administrator's Office 
 



ATTACHMENT 1











ATTACHMENT 2

























































































































ATTACHMENT 3

















                                                                                                                        November 1, 2009 
 
 
Mayor and City Council 
City of Santa Barbara 
 
Re:  El Encanto Master Plan Appeal 
 
Dear Mayor and Council members,  
 
     We are residents of the Riviera area of the City. We are fully 
supportive of the El Encanto Master Plan and urge you to deny the 
appeal that is scheduled for a hearing before you on November 10.  
     Thank you for your consideration of our views.  
 
                                                                     Respectfully submitted,  
 
                                                                     David and Linda Hughes 
                                                                     1608 Lasuen Road 


































	1.DOC (8 pages)
	2.DOC (1 page)
	3.DOC (1 page)
	4.DOC (1 page)
	5.PDF (1 page)
	6.DOC (2 pages)
	7.DOC (8 pages)
	8.DOC (7 pages)
	9.DOC (2 pages)
	10.DOC (2 pages)
	11.DOC (2 pages)
	12.DOC (3 pages)
	13.PDF (1 page)
	14.DOC (3 pages)
	15.DOC (2 pages)
	16.DOC (2 pages)
	17.PDF (1 page)
	18.DOC (2 pages)
	19.DOC (1 page)
	20.DOC (2 pages)
	21.PDF (1 page)
	22.DOC (2 pages)
	23.DOC (1 page)
	24.DOC (2 pages)
	25.PDF (1 page)
	26.DOC (2 pages)
	27.DOC (1 page)
	28.DOC (5 pages)
	29.PDF (2 pages)
	30.DOC (1 page)
	31.DOC (3 pages)
	32.PDF (5 pages)
	33.PDF (13 pages)
	34.PDF (4 pages)
	35.DOC (1 page)
	36.DOC (23 pages)
	37.DOC (3 pages)
	38.PDF (5 pages)
	39.PDF (64 pages)
	40.PDF (8 pages)
	41.DOC (1 page)



